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PART I
Item 1. Busines:

WWE is an integrated media and entertainment comnpate have been involved in the sports entertairirbasiness for over 30 years, .
have developed WWE into one of the most populandsan global entertainment today. We develop umignd creative content cente
around our talent and present it via televisiodin@nand at our live events. At the heart of ourcass are the athletic and entertainment
and appeal of our Superstars and our consistemtigvative and multfaceted storylines. Our live and televised eveotsisumer product
digital media and feature film outlets provide sfgant crosspromotion and marketing opportunities that reinéootir brands while effective
reaching our fans.

Based on the strength of the Compangtands and its ownership and control over itslledtual property, the Company has been at
leverage its content and talent across virtuallyredia outlets. We continually evaluate additioopportunities to monetize new and exis
content, including the announced launch of ourtdiggubscription over-thtsp ("OTT") network ("WWE Network"), which is schelkd tc
launch domestically on February 24, 2014, with pléor international distribution in certain marketgected to begin in late 2014. In sup
of this initiative, during 2012 and 2013, the Compancreased staffing levels and expanded our comeduction capabilities. The launct
WWE Network, which reimagines the distribution oME’s pay-per-view events, could reduce the mongtineof other assets, such as pay
per-view and other content distributed on certagital platforms. See Item 1ARisk Factors

"WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainment, Iremd its subsidiaries, unless the context othervagaires. References to "we," "L
"our" and the "Company" refer to WWE and its sulzsids. The initials "WWE" and our stylized and tiig distinctive scratch logo are two
our trademarks. This report also contains other WiviiEemarks and trade names as well as those ef ctimpanies. All trademarks and tr
names appearing in this report are the propertiiaf respective holders.

Our operations are centered around the following far business segments:

Live and Televised Entertainment

» Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ lavents, sales of merchandise at these live evetasision rights fees, integra
sponsorships fees, and fees for viewing our payvjew and video-on-demand programming.

Consumer Products

* Revenues consist principally of sales of WWEdmmed home entertainment (DVD/Biay), magazine publishing and royaltie:
license fees related to various WWE themed prodiiath as video games, toys and apparel.

Digital Media

* Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, rights fees received for digitaiteat, sale of merchandise on
website through our WWEShop internet storefront salds of various broadband and mobile content.

WWE Studios
* Revenues consist of amounts earned from the disioib of filmed entertainmen

Live and Televised Entertainment
(represents 75% , 73% and 70% of our net revenues 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively)
Live Event

Our broad and talented roster of Superstaadlows us to perform in numerous domestic marketd take advantage of the str
international demand for our events. Live events tabevision programming are our principal creatiemtent and production activities. (
creative team develops compelling and complex ctars and weaves them into dynamic storylines tloatbine physical and emotio
elements. Storylines are usually played out irrithg and unfold on our weekly television
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shows, culminating in monthly marquis events whistorically have been distributed via ppgr view. Subsequent to the launch of
subscription network, these marquis events wilinotuded as part of a subscription to WWE Network.

In 2013, we produced 256 live events throughouttiNémerica, entertaining approximately 1,542,000sfat an average ticket price
$48.63. We hold many of our live events at maj@nas across the country. In addition to providingtent for our television and otl
programming, these events provide us with a read-thssessment of the popularity of our storylimescharacters.

In 2013, we produced 65 live events internationakyaching approximately 382,000 fans at an avetiaiget price of $74.13. These eve
were spread over several international tours tHrougEurope, the Middle East, Asia, Latin Ameri8auth Africa and Australia.

Live events net revenues were $111.5 million , $108illion and $104.7 million, representing 22%1% and 22% of total net revenue
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Venue Merchandise

Our venue merchandise business consists of thgrdesiurcing, marketing and distribution of numer§WWE-branded products such as
shirts, caps and other novelty items, all of wHigdture our Superstars, Divas and/or logos. Thesesiare offered for sale at our live events.

Venue merchandise net revenues were $19.4 milig18.8 million and $18.3 million, representing 4¥otal net revenues in each of 2(
2012 and 2011.

Pay-Per-View Programming

WWE has been one of the world’s leading providdrpay-per-view programming for over 30 years. IL20WWE televised 12 live pay-
per-view events which ranked among the highesinsgelive event programs in the industry. WWE's aahcrown jewel WrestleMania, ha:
historically achieved more than one million buysridwide. On April 7, 2013, WWE celebrated the 28tniversary ofWrestleManian Eas
Rutherford, New Jersey before a sold-out crowd witions watching at homéVrestleMania 2%chieved approximately 1.1 million buys
generated $28.0 million in pay-per-view revenue.

WWE produced 12 domestic pay-pgew programs in 2013 and 2012 and 13 program®iri 2The suggested domestic retail price fc
pay-per-view events in 2013 was $44.95, with theeption ofWrestleManiavhich had a suggested domestic retail price of @& 3Consistel
with industry practices, we share the revenues wvathle systems and satellite providers such axDifgand pay service fees to iINDEMAT
and TVN. Average revenue per buy was $21.41 in 2018$20.60 in 2012.

Beginning withWrestleMania 3Q these monthly marquis shows will be offered ag phour WWE Network. Inclusion of our montt
marquis events as a part of our subscription WWEnviNE will result in the loss of all or part of thevenue from these pay-péew events i
the markets where WWE Network is available.

Pay-per-view net revenues were $82.5 million , 688illion and $78.3 million, representing 16947% and 16% of total net revenue
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, of which $66ilfian, $66.4 million, and $61.3 million were gem¢ed domestically.

Our international pay-periew partners include BSkyB in the United Kingdd®KY Deutschland in Germany, SKY Perfect TV! in JapaKY
Italia in Italy and Main Event in Australia, amontany others.

Television Distribution

Relying on our inhouse production capabilities at our technologjcatlvanced, high definition, production facilityevyproduce 6 hours
original weekly domestic television programming. \Also produce reality shows and other programmihany of these programs, with 1
planned exception of live and near live airingsR#&Wand SmackDownare planned to be aired on the new WWE Netwd@lur televisiol
programming is distributed domestically and intéiovally. Our domestic television programs currgrdke: RAWon USA Network witl
replays on mun2 and Universal HBmmackDowmn Syfy with replays on
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mun2; WWE Main Evenbn lon; andTotal Divason E! Network. WWES TV programs reach approximately 14 million viesvar the Unite
States during the average week. USA Network an@itig Channel are owned by NBC Universal.

The Company's domestic television agreements aoydRAW and SmackDownare coterminous and expire in September 2014,
distribution of ourRawandSmackDowprograms domestically is a key component of the @amg's business and operations. Failure to s
distribution of these programs on terms favorabl¢he Company could have a material adverse impat¢he Company's outlook, liquidi
business and operating results.

RAW:is a live primetime program which ranks among thesthhwatched regularly scheduled programs on prineettable televisiorRAW,
airing three hours weekly, is the longest weeklisegic program in primetime TV history and anchbiSA, helping make it consistently
top-rated cable network.

SmackDowris a two-hour show which airs in primetime on FyislelmackDowras on average been Syfy’s mesttched program each we
SmackDowris the second longest running weekly episodic @ogin primetime TV history, only behirlRIAW.

WWE Main Events a onehour original series that airs Wednesdays on IOMMIEk and showcases live events featuring the Stigoer an
Divas ofRAWandSmackDown

Total Divaswas added to WWE's programming line-up in July 200t first season of the omeur original series, which consisted of
regular episodes and one special, aired on Sunidaysron E! Network. The reality based show ex@dife beyond the ring for seven W\
Divas. The second season is scheduled to air biegiimMarch 2014,

NXT and WWE Superstarair on WWE.com domestically and are distributedtervision in 100 countries internationallyXT feature
developmental talent training to become WWE SupesstJpon launch of the netwoXTandWWE Superstarwill air on WWE Network.

Each year, more than 8,000 hours of W\/Elevision programming can be seen in more tfdhcbuntries and 30 languages arount
world. Our broadcast partners include: BSkyB in thated Kingdom; Ten Sports in India, and J SPORTSapan, among many others
January 2014, we announced the renewal of our agnetewith BSkyB in the United Kingdom through 2019.

Television rights fee net revenues were $160.9ianil| $139.5 million and $131.5 million, represeqti32%, 29% and 27% of total r
revenues in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

WWE Classics On Demand

WWE Classics On Demand has been a subscriptiorovitiedemand service that offered classic televisibows, older pay-periew
events, specials and original programming for a thgnsubscription fee. In anticipation of WWE Netkdaunch, it ceased operations
January 2014.

WWE Classics On Demand net revenues were $3.8omiifi 2013, $4.1 million in 2012 and $4.6 millian2011, representing 1% of tc
net revenues in each period.

Consumer Products
(represents 15% , 18% and 20% of our net revenues 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively)
Licensing

We have established a worldwide licensing programgiour marks and logos, copyrighted works andagttars on a large variety of re
products, including toys, video games, appareltaaks. Currently, we have relationships with mawant 150 licensees worldwide that proy
products for sale at major retailers. To maintdia tlistinctive style and quality of our intelledtymoperty and brand, we retain crea
approval over the design, packaging, advertisirdy@omotional materials associated with these prtsdu
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Video games and toys are the largest componerdsrdfcensing program. We have a comprehensivetitpear licensing agreement w
Mattel, Inc. our master toy licensee, coveringgédbal territories, which we recently renewed. 013, we entered into an agreement with
Bridge Direct to develop and distribute productshie construction category, a segment of the téggoay that has demonstrated strong gr
over the last several years. Also in 2013, we ent@rto a new multi-year agreement with Take-Tweactive Software, Inc. ("Takéwo") to
publish future video games. This replaced our agese with THQ, Inc. ("THQ"), our former video gartieensee, which filed for bankrupt
in 2012.

Music is an integral part of the entertainment eigmee surrounding WWE's live events, televisiorognams and pay-pesiews. We
compose and record most of our music, including Superstar entrance themes, in our recording stuidiaddition to our own compos
music, we license music performed by popular artigtusic links the WWE brand to all media platformeluding television, film, radio, vide
games, live events and other emerging digital teldgies.

Licensing net revenues, including music, were $48il6on , $46.3 million and $54.4 million, repregeng 9%, 10% and 11% of total r
revenues in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Home Entertainmer

WWE distributes its original content as home eniarhent releases in both physical (DVD and BEly} and digital formats. Conte
distributed through home entertainment channelsriwsded themed compilations from the Companyast archives as well as releases ¢
Company’s pay-per-view events. Cinedigm, the largaggregator and distributor of independent contelistributes WWES homi
entertainment in the U.S., where titles are gehesalld to retailers, such as Wisllart and Best Buy as well as to subscription aadgaction:
on-demand services, such as iTunes, Amazon, Nedfid others. Outside the United States, thady licensees distribute our ha
entertainment releases.

In recent years, home entertainment revenues hesindd as a result of several factors, includingstimers shifting to digital forma
subscription rental services and discount rentasks; general domestic and international economiwlitions; increasing competition
consumer discretionary time and spending; piraogt tne maturation of the standard definition DVDnfiat. In response to these decli
WWE is customizing its content and promotion to m#tke product more compelling for consumers.

In 2013, we released 28 new home video productipnisally and, in the U.S., shipped approximately aillion DVD and Blufay units
including catalog titles released in prior years.

Home entertainment net revenues were $24.3 miJl&#8.0 million and $30.4 million, representing 5%#6 and 6% of total net revenue
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Magazine Publishin
The magazine division of WWE publishéBNVE Magazine, WWE Kidsagazine and several special magazines.

The flagship title WWE Magazineis a global mers lifestyle publication with licensed editions mmetUnited Kingdom and Turkey amc
other countries. Every issue is filled with feagjrphotos, exclusive interviews and access that fialh not see on television. In the USWE
Magazinereaches more than 4.6 million readers every month.

Our WWE Kidsmagazine was launched in April 2008 and publiskeditsues in 2013VWE Kidsalso has licensed editions in the Un
Kingdom, Germany and Turkey.

Magazine publishing net revenues were $5.7 milli&6.0 million and $7.7 million, representing 1%% and 2% of total net revenue:
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Digital Media
(represents 8% , 7% and 6% of our net revenues in(®L3, 2012 and 2011, respectively)

WWE.com

WWE utilizes the Internet to promote our brandgate a community experience among our fans, marktistribute our online cont:
and digital products and sell online advertisingr @rimary website, WWE.com, attracted an averdg®4od million monthly unique visito
worldwide during 2013. These visitors viewed anrage of more than 529 million pages and approxiyai8.7 million video streams [
month. WWE wallpapers, ringtones, voicetones, gaamelsvideos are available through our mobile pastnips.

WWE currently has regional websites spanning 23ntreas worldwide, allowing fans to experience WWtiEtheir native language witr
concentration on local events and shows. Someeottiuntries in which we have regional websitesuidel China, France, Germany, In
Japan, Poland, Portugal, Spain and Russia. Lok agencies sell advertising on WWE.com in moaa thine countries.

WWE currently streams its video content on selé@¢® portals such as Hulu and YouTube.

WWE.com net revenues were $23.0 million , $19.iomland $12.5 million, representing 5%4% and 3% of total net revenues in 2
2012 and 2011, respectively.

WWEShop
WWEShop is our e-commerce storefront. WWEShop msee approximately 320,200 orders during 2013 agpaced to 307,000 in 2012.

WWEShop net revenues were $15.5 million , $14.8ioniland $15.6 million, representing 38btotal net revenues in 2013, 2012 and 2
respectively.

WWE Studios

(represents 2% , 2% and 4% of our net revenues in(®L3, 2012 and 2011, respectively)

WWE Studios oversees the Companparticipation in the production and global disttion of filmed entertainment content, which r
include movies for theatrical release, home entartant (Bluray and DVD), television licensing and other ameill revenue streams (suct
hotels, cruise ships and airlines). The Companiebes$ that there is compelling rationale for p@wating in the movie business, includ
expanding the reach of its brands, reaching nevieaods, supporting the Compasyhvestment in its Superstar talent, and buildingpnter
library with lasting value.

In 2012, WWE Studios implemented a new businessemachich focuses on the utilization of strategartperships, including productic
distribution and acquisition relationships, to wgptie financial risk. WWE utilizes its marketing aodntent platforms, especially its wee
presence on prime-time television, to support itsie projects.

D uring 2013, among the feature film projects reldabeatrically under the WWE Studios banner inctliflee Call, starring Halle Berry ar
with WWE Superstar, David Otunghlo One Livesand Dead Man Down Among other film projects, WWE Studios also jaineith 20™
Century Fox to co-produce and co-finance two ditedDVD installments of previous franchiseBhe Marine 3: Homefronstarring WWE
Superstar, The Miz, ant? Rounds 2: Reloadedarring WWE Superstar, Randy Orton. Additionalbhristmas Bountya made-fortelevisior
movie, was released on ABC Family in November 2Q13coming films for WWE Studios take advantage tobrsg, established franchis
These include two animated films, co-produced Witérner Bros. Animation - a Scooby Doo feature afdirtstones feature.

WWE Studios net revenues were $10.8 million , $iion and $20.9 million, representing 29%2% and 4% of total net revenues in 2!
2012 and 2011, respectively.






Table of Contents

The Company has substantial capitalized film coBt® accounting for our film business in accordawité generally accepted account
principles entails significant judgment used toalep estimates of expected future revenues framsfilf expected revenue for one or mor
our films does not materialize because audienceaddrdoes not meet expectations, our estimated wegeamay not be sufficient to recoup
investment in the film. If actual revenues are lowean our estimated revenues or if costs are hitgen expected, or if other conditic
indicate our film assets may not be recoverablecateulate the estimated fair value of the filmthé unamortized cost of the film is grei
than the estimated fair value, we are requirecetomnd an impairment charge and write down the abpéd costs of the film to the estims
fair value. During the years ended December 31320012 and 2011, we recorded aggregate impairotamges of $11.7 million, $1.2 milli
and $23.4 million, respectively, relating to featditms. See Note 7 to the Consolidated Finandate®nents included in this report for furt
discussion.

International

Revenues generated outside of North America aalbsair business segments were $116.3 million @t $118.1 million for 2012 a
$133.4 million for 2011. Revenues generated frotarimational sources accounted for 23% of total mees generated in 2013, 24% in 2
and 28% in 2011. Revenues generated in the Unitaddém, our largest international market, were 838illion , $34.0 million and $33
million for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. TBempany had approximately $0.1 milliam property and equipment located outside
United States as of December 31, 2013.

See Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrinatuded in this report for additional informatiby segment and by geographic area.

Creative Development and Production

Headed by our Chairman and Chief Executive Offivémcent K. McMahon, our creative team develops peling and complex charact
and weaves them into dynamic storylines that compimysical and emotional elements. Storylines awally played out in the ring and unf
on our weekly television shows, culminating in eoonthly marquis events. We voluntarily designat shitability of each of our televisi
shows using standard industry ratings, and aluofppogramming carries a PG rating.

Our success is due primarily to the continuing papty of our Superstars and Divas. We currentlyehapproximately 135 Superstars
Divas under exclusive contracts, ranging from raydtar guaranteed contracts with established Superstalevelopmental contracts with
Superstars in training. Our Superstars and Divashahly trained and motivated independent contractwhose compensation is tied to
revenue that they help generate. We own the righs¢sibstantially all of our characters and exclelsiVicense the rights we do not own thro
agreements with our Superstars and Divas. We amitinseek to identify, recruit and develop additibtalent for our business.

Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal fan base,dhtertainment industry is highly competitive ambject to fluctuations in populari
which are not easy to predict. For our live, tedeui, pay-periew and movie audiences and from business suchirasew WWE Network, w
will face competition from professional and collegports as well as from other forms of live, filmedlevised and streamed/broadk
entertainment and other leisure activities. We cet@pvith entertainment companies, professionalcafidge sports leagues and other me
of branded apparel and merchandise for the satemfranded merchandise. As we continue to expatodhe highly competitive digital me«
market including with WWE Network, we will face ireased competition from websites offering paid fiad webbased and wireless conte
Many companies with whom we compete have greatantiial resources than we do.

Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to all aspectsoof operations, and we expend substantial costeffiodt in an attempt to maintain
protect our intellectual property and to mainta@mpliance vis-a-vis other partiesitellectual property. We have a large portfolioregistere
and unregistered trademarks and service marks wiglddand maintain a large catalog of copyrightedkspincluding copyrights in o
programming, music, photographs, books, magazfiles and apparel art. A principal focus of ourcefs is to protect the intellectual prope
relating to our originally created characters moyréd by our performers, which encompasses imateselsses, names and other identif
indicia of these characters. We also own a largeb®un of internet
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website domain names and operate a network of djged] contenbased sites, which facilitate and contribute to ¢ploitation of ou
intellectual property worldwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual gty rights by, among other things, searching tiernet to ascertain unauthorized us
our intellectual property, seizing goods that featunauthorized use of our intellectual propertgt aeeking restraining orders and/or dam
in court against individuals or entities infringingr intellectual property rights. Our failure tortail piracy, infringement or other unauthori
use of our intellectual property rights effectivedy our infringement of other@tellectual property rights, could adversely affear operatin
results.

Financial Information about Segments

See Note 18 to Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tants, which is included elsewhere in this ForaKl@or financial information abo
each of our segments.

Employees

As of February 2014, we had approximately 762 egg#s. This headcount excludes our Superstars, vehmdependent contractors. (
in-house production staff is supplemented with comtpmrsonnel for our television production. We bedighat our relationships with ¢
employees are good. None of our employees aresemtied by a union.

Regulation

Live Events

In various states in the United States and soma&diorjurisdictions, athletic commissions and otigplicable regulatory agencies requir
to obtain licenses for promoters, medical cleararaed/or other permits or licenses for performeida permits for events in order for us
promote and conduct our live events. If we faittmply with the regulations of a particular juristittn, we may be prohibited from promot
and conducting our live events in that jurisdictidime inability to present our live events overextended period of time or in a numbe
jurisdictions could lead to a decline in the vasaevenue streams generated from our live everitichweould adversely affect our opera
results.

Television Programming

The production of television programming by indegiemt producers is not directly regulated by theefatlor state governments, but
marketplace for television programming in the Udif&tates and internationally is substantially afddy government regulations applici
to, as well as social and political influences tabevision stations, television networks and calid satellite television systems and chan
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry gatirand all of our programming carries a
rating. Changes in governmental policy and privesetor perceptions could further restrict our paogicontent and adversely affect our le
of viewership and operating results.

Available Information

Copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, @erdy Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports omF8i&K, and any amendments to th
reports, are available free of charge on our welzihttp://corporate.wwe.com as soon as reasopaatyicable after such reports are filed 1
or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Conionis§'SEC”). Our reports are also available free abfarge on the SEE’website
http://www.sec.gov. The public may read and copy mmaterials filed by the Company with the SEC a& 8ECS Public Reference Room
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The pubky obtain information on the operation of the RuBleference Room by calling the S
at 1-800-SEC-0330. None of the information on ahpur websites is part of this Annual Report onrRdr0K. Our Corporate Governar
Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and chartesup Audit, Compensation and our Governance andiNating Committees are a
available on our website. A copy of any of theseuoents will be mailed to any stockholder withobiige upon request to us at 1241
Main Street, Stamford, CT 06902, Attn: Investor&ieins Department.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are inherent risks and uncertainties assatiaith our business that could adversely affectaperating performance and finan
condition. Set forth below are descriptions of #hdsks and uncertainties that we currently believee material, but the risks and uncertai
described below are not the only risks and uncgits that could affect our business. See the d#on under Cautionary Statement 1
Purposes of the ‘Safe Harbor’ Provisions of thev&a Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995” itein 7, Managemerst’ Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our failure to maintain or renew key domestic teleision agreements could adversely affect our abilityto distribute television
programming which could adversely affect our operang results.

Our television programming is distributed by broastcand cable networks. Because a large portimuofevenues are generated, directly
indirectly, from this distribution of our programngj, any failure to maintain or renew arrangemerith distributors and platforms, the fail
of distributors or platforms to continue to proviskervices to us or the failure to enter into nestriiution opportunities on terms favorabli
us could adversely affect our operating results.réépilarly engage in negotiations relating to safisal agreements covering the distribu
of our television programming by carriers locatedhe United States and abroad. Over the pastaeyears we have expanded our relatior
with NBC Universal ("NBCU") and they currently diktute the vast majority of our domestic televisigmgramming. In 2013, these NB!
agreements were made coterminous, ending in Septe20i4. The Company is now engaged with potepéghers after exiting our exclus
negotiating period with NBCU. The inability of tli@mpany to enter into a domestic distribution agreet(s) on terms favorable to us cc
substantially affect the Compasyfinancial outlook, liquidity, business and oparatresults and have a material adverse effechemtice ¢
the Companys Class A Common Stock, which the Company beligefiects market expectations of a substantial im@neent in futur
operating results.

The Company has spent, and will likely continue tepend, substantial amounts to produce content andfrastructure for distribution of

content on our new WWE Network which is scheduleda launch domestically on February 24, 2014. While & have significan
experience monetizing content across many platformsve do not have the same level of expertise in tléstribution platforms that will

carry our digital over the top WWE Network on a subscription basis and we could experience significargetbacks in such monetizatic
efforts. If, for any of a number of reasons, we are unableot monetize this distribution platform successfully these additional costs, ar
the possible loss of very significant revenue frorather distribution platforms potentially being displaced, could have a material advers
effect on our operating results.

Loss of Pay-Per-View Revenue and PrdSg. part of the subscription to WWE Network, we areluding programming that we he
historically offered through pay-per-view channés a pay-pexdew basis, such programming resulted in worldwigleenues of $82.5 millic
and OIBDA of $34.1 million for the year ended Ded®mmn31, 2013. A majority of these revenues and GABIDe for domestic pay-petiew
distribution. Although we intend to continue dibtrting this programming through pay-pgew channels domestically after the launcl
WWE Network, distributors may decide to no longarrg such programming and we cannot require therdot®o. If, for any number
reasons, our audience does not subscribe to WWiddetin sufficient numbers to offset or exceed dogs of pay-perdew revenue, tt
resulting loss of revenue and profit could haveademal adverse effect on our business and operatisults.

Need to Attract, Retain and Replace Subscrib®ve believe that WWE has a passionate fan baseetkr, the markets for entertainm
video are intensely competitive and include martysstiption, transactional and adpported models and vast amounts of pirated raigil
of which capture segments of the entertainmentovidarket. Our ability to attract subscribers to new WWE Network will depend in part
our ability to provide our subscribers with a catsnt high quality service that is perceived tostibmte good value for the consunwmer’
entertainment dollars. We may face competition wihpect to service levels, content offerings, ipgcand related features, which r
adversely impact our ability to attract subscrib&empetitors include, among others, broadcastecatd satellite television, many of wh
have so-called “TV everywhere” and “on demardhtent, online movie and television content prevéd(both legal and illegal (pirated)),
DVD rentals and sales. If consumers do not percaiVeE Network to be a good value, we may not be &blattract them. In addition, wh
we will have minimum

10




Table of Contents

subscription periods (currently six months), sullss thereafter could cancel their subscriptioos & number of reasons, includin
perception that they do not use the service sefiity, the need to cut household expenses, ursettsy content, competitive entertainment
lower price and customer service issues. This isneonly referred to as “churnWe will need to add new subscribers to replace e
who cancel in order to grow our business. If wendb attract subscribers, if too many of our sulises cancel our service at the end o
minimum subscription periods (or wrongfully befaten), or if we are unable to attract new subscsilire sufficient numbers, our financ
outlook, liquidity, business and operating resultaild be adversely affected.

Significant Initial and Ongoing Cost©ur new WWE Network has and will continue to riegsignificant capital expenditures and opere
costs to build the infrastructure, reconfigure adit content for digital delivery and provide adatpmarketing and customer service. Ca
expenditures will result in increased amortizataomd depreciation and, in certain circumstances regyire impairment charges, if cap
projects do not provide adequate results in theestrof our new WWE Network. Any and all such costsiot more than offset by reveni
from the new WWE Network, could have a materialexde effect on our business and operating results.

Emerging BusinessWe believe that we are entering the market fdrsetiption digital streaming at a relatively eastage. We beliey
acceptance of this type of service is growing amasgys, that our fans are technologically soplagtitt and that the market is not saturated
could, however, find that we are entering this bess too early and that our fans are unwilling igrate to a digital network. Alternatively,
could find that we are entering this business &te &nd that other players, who have greater experiand resources than we, have occ
the space in a manner that will create significzartiers to the successful launch of WWE Networkhare will be dominant competition in-
market for this type of service going forward. Unéé&her scenario, our ability to attract subsaidbwould be adversely affected, which cc
have a material adverse effect on our busines®paiting results.

Reliance on Partners to Offer the Network omidles DevicesWe plan to offer subscribers the ability to recestreeaming content throu
their PCs, Macs and other Internet-connected dsyiceluding game consoles and mobile devices atet kmart televisions and Biay
players. We intend to continue to broaden our ciéipalbo stream programming to other platforms gpattners over time. If we are |
successful in entering into and maintaining thetationships, or if we encounter technologicaktising or other impediments to our strear
content, or if viewers migrate from our platfornespiatforms we do not or cannot utilize, our apitid compete successfully could be advel
impacted. Agreements with consumer electronicsigess are typically relatively short term in ducetiand our business could be advel
affected if, upon expiration, a number of partrdwsnot continue to provide access to our servicarerunwilling to do so on terms accept:
to us.

Possible Disruption of Systems to be Utilize®©ur OperationsOur reputation and ability to attract, retain ardve our subscribers will
dependent upon the reliable performance of our ehenpsystems and those of thjpdrties that we utilize in our operations. Intetiops ir
these systems, or with the Internet in generalldconake our service unavailable or degraded orrailse hinder our ability to deliver conte
and we do not carry business interruption insuraBedivery of audiovisual material over the Interisedone through a series of carriers
switch-overs between carriers, and any point of failur¢his distribution chain would cause a disruptisrdegradation of our signal. Serv
disruption or degradation for any of the foregoiagsons could diminish the overall attractivendssio subscription service to subscribers.

Our servers and those of third parties we will irs@ur operations are vulnerable to computer vsugdysical or electronic breaks anc
similar disruptions and could experience direct#tdcés intended to lead to interruptions and delaysur service and operations as we
loss, misuse, theft or release of proprietary, idemitial, sensitive or otherwise valuable Companysabscriber data or information. A
attempt by hackers to disrupt our service or otisrvaccess our systems, if successful, could hambuosiness, be expensive to rem
expose us to litigation and/or damage our reputatiur insurance does not cover expenses relatattodisruptions or unauthorized access.

We will rely on an outside contractor to supplyrsfigant portions of the technology and infrastuuetto deliver our content and interact \
the user, including payment methods. Future enlmmeots and modifications to that technology coulddnee commercially necessary. If
are unable to acquire, maintain and enhance theddmgy to manage the streaming of content to abisaribers in a timely and efficie
manner either through an outside contractor, dtfied parties or ourselves, our ability

11




Table of Contents

to retain existing subscribers and to add new silEss may be impaired. In addition, if our tectowpt or that of third parties we will utilize
our operations fails or otherwise operates imprgpeur ability to attract and/or retain subscriber add new subscribers may be impa
Also, any harm to our subscribers' personal conmmpuie other devices caused by software used iroperations could have an adverse e
on our business, results of operations and finaooiadition.

In addition, fires, floods, earthquakes, power éssstelecommunications failures, bréak-and similar events could damage systems
hardware used for our service or cause them tedaipletely. As we do not maintain entirely redumdzsystems, a disrupting event could re
in prolonged downtime of our operations and couldeasely affect our business.

Impact of Government Regulatioii$ie adoption or modification of laws and regulatisalating to the Internet or other areas of ouiries
could limit or otherwise adversely affect the mamimewhich we plan to conduct our business. Themtinoand development of the market
online commerce may lead to more stringent consymnetection laws, which may impose additional baglen us. If we are required
comply with new regulations or legislation or neweirpretations of existing regulations or legislatithis compliance could cause us to i
additional expenses or alter our proposed busimeskel.

The adoption of any laws or regulations that adsgraffect the growth, popularity or use of theeimiet, including laws limiting Interr
neutrality, could limit the demand for our substidp service and increase our cost of doing busineslate 2010, the Federal Communicat
Commission adopted stalled net neutrality rules intended, in part, tevent network operators from discriminating agelagal traffic tha
transverse their networks. These rules were rgcer#rturned, and the impact of such ruling cufgecannot be fully understood either leg:
or commercially. To the extent that network operatose this ruling to engage in discriminatory ficas, our business could be adver
impacted. As we expand internationally, governmegulation concerning the Internet, and in paréicuhetwork neutrality, may be nascer
non-existent. Within such a regulatory environment, pled with potentially significant political and ewamic power of local netwo
operators, we could experience discriminatory di-emmpetitive practices that could impede our growtyse us to incur additional expe
or otherwise negatively affect our business. SirlyiJdo the extent that network operators implemgsdage based pricing, including meanin
bandwidth caps, or otherwise try to monetize actes$iseir networks by data providers, due to thavigebandwidth use of audio/visual cont
we could incur greater operating expenses andudgcsiber acquisition and retention could be negltiimpacted. If network operators cre
tiers of Internet access service and either chasger our service providers for, or prohibit usnfrdeing available through, these tiers,
business could be negatively impacted.

Most network operators that provide consumers acteshe Internet also provide consumers audiolipuagramming. As a result, the
companies have an incentive to use their netwditastructure in a manner adverse to our succesgh@@xtent they provide preferen
treatment to their data or otherwise implementriisioatory network management practices, our nétwamuld be negatively impacted.
international markets these same incentives appheklier, consumer demand, regulatory oversight antpetition may not be as strong.

Privacy concernsWe collect and utilize data supplied by our fand afan to do so from WWE Network subscribers. Werently face
certain legal obligations regarding the manner liclv we treat such information. Increased regutatibdata utilization practices that limit «
ability to use collected data could have an advefect on our business. In addition, if we weredisclose data about our subscribers
manner that was objectionable to them, our busiregastation could be adversely affected, and wédcface potential legal claims that co
impact our operating results. As our business emband as we expand internationally, we may beuhgct to additional restrictions on
treatment of customer information.

We are subject to intellectual property risksom time to time, third parties allege that we dnaiolated their intellectual property rights
connection with WWE Network, if we are unable totaib sufficient rights, successfully defend our ,use otherwise alter our busin
practices on a timely basis in response to claigainst us for infringement, misappropriation, mesws other violation of thirgharty
intellectual property rights, our business couldablgersely affected. Many companies are devotiggifitant resources to developing pat
that potentially affect aspects of streaming sewicFor example, there are numerous patents tloadlyr claim means and methods
conducting business on the Internet. We have raeothed patents relative to our technology. Defapdiurselves against intellectual prop
claims, whether they are with or without merit, ltbtesult in costly litigation and diversion of gennel. It also may result in our inability
use technology as currently configured for our entrbusiness and/or for our new WWE Network. Agsult of a dispute, we may have
develop non-infringing technology,
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enter into royalty or licensing agreements, adjustmerchandising or marketing activities or takeeo actions to resolve the claims which |
be costly or unavailable on terms acceptable to us.

We intend to spend significant amounts on mentgeincluding promotional offerings, to attracgtain and renew subscribers, but acces
suitable marketing channels might not be availabfleompanies we plan to use to promote WWE Netwmgkeve that we could negativ:
impact their business, decide that they want teresimilar businesses or wish to support competitors, we may not be given access to
marketing channels. We may decide not to use certairketing sources or activities if they are pem@ to be ineffective. If adequi
marketing channels are not available for any offtregoing reasons, or for any other reasons, bilityato attract new subscribers may
adversely affected.

Our failure to continue to develop creative and erdrtaining programs and events would likely lead ta decline in the popularity of oul
brand of entertainment and could adversely affect or operating results.

The creation, marketing and distribution of oureliand televised entertainment, including our payw@wv events, as well as additio
derivative programming, is at the core of our bass The production of compelling live and teledis®ntent is critical to our ability
generate revenues across our media platforms apdugr outlets. Our failure to continue to creatgudar live events and televis
programming would likely lead to a decline in oetetision ratings and attendance at our live evemtich would adversely affect ¢
operating results.

Our failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal of wr storylines and the popularity of
our brand of entertainment, which could adversely &ect our operating results.

Our success depends, in large part, upon ouryabilitecruit, train and retain athletic performe#so have the physical presence, acting al
and charisma to portray characters in our live evamd televised programming. We cannot guararitaevie will be able to continue
identify, train and retain these performers in filmeire. Additionally, we cannot guarantee that wi# lae able to retain our current perform
during the terms of their contracts or when theintcacts expire. Our failure to attract and retiedly performers, an increase in the c
required to attract and retain such performers serious or untimely injury to, or the death afuoexpected or premature loss or retiret
for any reason of, any of our key performers colelald to a decline in the appeal of our storylined #e popularity of our brand
entertainment, which could adversely affect ourrapieg results.

The unexpected loss of the services of Vincent K.dahon could adversely affect our ability to creatgpopular characters and creativ
storylines or could otherwise adversely affect ouoperating results.

In addition to serving as Chairman of our Boardakctors and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. McMahtaads the creative team that deve
the storylines and the characters for our televig®gramming and live events. Mr. McMahon, fromdito time, has also been an impor
member of our cast of performers. The loss of McMdhon due to unexpected retirement, disabilitatld®r other unexpected termination
any reason could have a material adverse effeciuorbility to create popular characters and cveadtorylines or could otherwise adver:
affect our operating results.

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sports entertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political climate
could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumer tastegaredtainment trends, which are unpredictable ambjest to change and may be affecte
changes in the social and political climate. Ougpamming is created to evoke a passionate respmraeour fans. Changes in our fanaste
or a material change in the perceptions of ourrass partners, including our distributors and kess, whether as a result of the socia
political climate or otherwise, could adverselyeatfour operating results.

Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related prate sector initiatives could adversely affect outelevision business.
While the production of television programming Ingépendent producers is not directly regulatedhieyféderal or state governments in

United States, the marketplace for television progning in the United States is affected signifisahy government regulations applicable
as well as social and political influences on,\t&lien stations, television networks and
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cable and satellite television systems and chaniéés voluntarily designate the suitability of eashour television shows using stand
industry ratings, and all of our programming cutlhghas a PG rating. Domestic and foreign goverrtaleand privatesector initiatives relatir
to the content of media programming are announiged fime to time. Any failure by us to meet thessgnmental policies and privasecto
expectations could restrict our program contentaoheersely affect our levels of viewership and afirg results.

The markets in which we operate are intensely compidve, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentel, and we may not be able 1
compete effectively, especially against competitonsith greater financial resources or marketplace pesence, which could adverse
affect our operating results.

We face competition for our audiences from profassi and college sports, as well as from other $oohlive and televised, streamed
filmed entertainment and other leisure activitiesa rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedketplace. The manner in wh
audio/video content is distributed and viewed igstantly changing. While we attempt to distribute oontent across all platforms, our fail
to continue to do so effectively (including, foraemple only, our emphasizing a distribution platfattmat in time lessens in importance
becomes obsolete or our loss of, or other inabititprocure, carriage on an important platform)ldadversely affect our operating result:
other providers of entertainment video addresski@ges in consumer viewing habits in a mannerishiagtter able to meet content distribi
and consumer needs and expectations, our busioeds loe adversely affected. For the sale of oursaorer products, we compete v
entertainment companies, professional and collpgesleagues and other makers of branded appateharchandise. Many of the compa
with whom we compete have greater financial resesitban we do.

Our failure to compete effectively could resultisignificant loss of viewers, subscribers, vendesdribution channels or performers and fe
entertainment and advertising dollars spent orfaum of sports entertainment, any of which coul@exdely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with internationainarkets, which could adversely affect our operatig results and impair our busines
strategy.

We are consistently negotiating and entering i ficenses and renewals and extensions of exiatingements for our products and sen
including television programming, in internatiomaarkets. Cultural norms and regulatory framewors/in the markets in which we opet
and our products' nonconformance to local normeppticable law or regulations could affect our sal@éewership and success in the mar
In January 2014, we renewed the license agreeraentf programming on BSkyB in the United Kingdomda&Republic of Ireland. Our secc
largest international television deal, for Indedue to be renewed or replaced in 2014. Our ptmduof live events overseas subjects us t
risks involved in foreign travel and local regutats, including regulations requiring us to obtaigag for our performers. In addition, these
events and the licensing of our television and gorex products in international markets expose usdme degree of currency ri
International operations may be subject to politinatability inherent in varying degrees in thasarkets. These risks could adversely a
our operating results and impair our ability togue our business strategy as it relates to iniermatmarkets.

We may be prohibited from promoting and conductingour live events if we do not comply with applicableegulations, which could leas
to a decline in the various revenue streams generat from our live events, which could adversely aff# our operating results.

In the United States and some foreign jurisdictiaibletic commissions and other applicable regmyaagencies require us to obtain licel
for promoters, medical clearances and/or other perar licenses for performers and/or permits feergs in order for us to promote :
conduct our live events. In the event that we failcomply with the regulations of a particular gdiction, we may be prohibited frc
promoting and conducting our live events in thatsgiction. The inability to present our live everdver an extended period of time or
number of jurisdictions could lead to a declinghie various revenue streams generated from oueelreats, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Because we depend upon our intellectual property ghts, our inability to protect those rights, or ourinfringement of others’ intellectual
property rights, could adversely affect our busines.
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Our inability to protect our large portfolio of ttamarks, service marks, copyrighted material ardastiers, trade names and other intelle
property rights from piracy, counterfeiting or atheauthorized use could negatively affect our hess. Intellectual property is material tc
aspects of our operations, and we expend subdtaoth and effort in an attempt to maintain andtgeb our intellectual property and
maintain compliance vis-a-vis other partiéstellectual property. We have a large portfolio refistered and unregistered trademarks
service marks worldwide and maintain a large cgtalb copyrighted works, including copyrights to otevision programming, mus
photographs, books, magazines and apparel artin&ipal focus of our efforts is to protect the ifgetual property relating to our origina
created characters portrayed by our performersciwlhcompasses images, likenesses, names anddahiflying indicia of these characte
We also own a large number of Internet website domames and operate a network of developed, cohased sites, which facilitate ¢
contribute to the exploitation of our intellectymbperty worldwide. Our failure to curtail piradpfringement or other unauthorized use of
intellectual property rights effectively, or oufiimgement of others’ intellectual property righteuld adversely affect our operating results.

We could incur substantial liability in the event d accidents or injuries occurring during our physically demanding events.

We hold numerous live events each year. This sdbedposes our performers and our employees whimané/ed in the production of tha
events to the risk of travel and performamekated accidents, the consequences of which ariihpcovered by insurance. The physical na
of our events exposes our performers to the riskedbus injury or death. Although our performersindependent contractors, are respor
for maintaining their own health, disability antelinsurance, we seifisure medical costs for our performers for injsrikat they incur whi
performing. We also selfisure a substantial portion of any other liabilityat we could incur relating to such injuries. kilay to us resultin
from any death or serious injury sustained by ohew performers while performing, to the extent wovered by our insurance, co
adversely affect our business, financial conditiod operating results.

Our live events entail other risks inherent in pubic live events, which could lead to disruptions t@ur business as well as liability t
other parties, any of which could adversely affecbur financial condition or results of operations.

We hold numerous live events each year, both docadlgtand internationally. Certain risks are ingx&rin large events of this type as we
the travel to and from them. Although we believe take appropriate safety and financial precautionsonnection with our events, poss
difficulties could occur including air and land \& interruption or accidents, the spread of ilgésjuries resulting from building probler
pyrotechnics or other equipment malfunction, tasraror other violence, local labor strikes and otlierce majeure” type events. These is:
could result in canceled events and other disroptto our business for which we do not carry bissiristerruption insurance, or could resu
liability to other parties. Any of these risks cdw@dversely affect our financial condition or réswf operations.

We continue to face certain risks relating to our éature film business, which could result in higherproduction costs and assi
impairment charges, which could adversely affect aufinancial condition or our results of operations.

We have substantial capitalized film costs. Theoanting for our film business in accordance witmemlly accepted accounting princig
entails significant judgment used to develop edstmaf expected future revenues from films. If extpd revenue from one or more of our fi
does not materialize because audience demand dibemeet expectations, our estimated revenues maybadcsufficient to recoup o
investment in the film. If actual revenues are lowean our estimated revenues or if costs are higfen expected, we may be require
record an impairment charge and write down thetakped costs of the film. No assurance can bergitsat we will not record additior
impairment charges in future periods. In additiapitalized film costs are reflected net of cerainduction tax incentives granted by vari
governmental authorities. Our ability to realizegh credits may be limited by changes in the latiisi governing the incentives and/or
economic environment. The inability to realize #hesedits would have the effect of increasing awgrall production costs.

In addition to the risks noted above relating to tke launch of our new WWE Network, we could face a vaty of risks if we expand intc
other new and complementary businesses and/or makertain investments.
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We have entered into new or complementary busisessg made investments in other companies in tstegoa plan to continue to do so in
future. Risks of expansion may include, among ottigks: potential diversion of managementttention and other resources, inclu
available cash, from our existing businesses; lcipated liabilities or contingencies; reduced @ due to increased amortizat
impairment charges and other costs; competitiomfther companies with more experience in suchnlegses; and possible additic
regulatory requirements and compliance costs wtaehd affect our business, financial condition aperating results.

We face various risks relating to our computer sygms and online operations, which could have a negat impact on our financial
condition or our results of operations.

The Company faces the risk of a security breadtissuption, whether through external cyber intrasiw from persons with access to syst
inside our organization. Although the Company makamificant efforts to maintain the security of itomputer systems, and it
implemented various measures to manage the risksafcurity breach or disruption, there can be isorasce that these security efforts
measures will be effective or that attempted sécbrieaches or disruptions would not be successfdmaging or that the Company woulc
promptly aware of them. The Company and certaiitsothird party service providers receive persandrmation through web services wh
will include our new WWE Network, and in many instes this information is subject to the Companyi'gagy policies. Personal informati
received by our service providers includes creditidnformation in certain instances, most notaily new WWE Network and WWESh
the Company's internet retail operations. The Campmxpends significant effort to ensure compliawith its privacy policy and to ensure t
our service providers safeguard credit card infaimnmaincluding contractually requiring those prosid to remain compliant with applica
PCl Data Security Standards. However, a significgedurity breach or other disruption involving tBempany's computer systems cc
disrupt the proper functioning of these systems thetefore the Company's operations (for which wendt carry business interrupt
insurance); result in the unauthorized accessni,d@struction, loss, theft, misappropriation dease of proprietary, confidential, sensitivi
otherwise valuable information; require significaminagement attention and resources to remedyathagks that could result; and subjec
Company to litigation or damage to its reputatiémy or all of these could have a negative impactoan financial condition or results
operations.

A decline in general economic conditions or disrupbn of financial markets may, among other things, educe the discretionary incom
of consumers or erode advertising markets, which etd adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by general economiditons, which affect consumerdisposable income. The demand for entertainmen
leisure activities tends to be highly sensitivéhie level of consumerslisposable income. Declines in general economiditions could reduc
the level of discretionary income that our fans guodential fans have to spend on our live and iségl entertainment, including WV
Network, and consumer products, which could adWeraffect our revenues. Volatility and disruptiof fmmancial markets could limit o
clients’, licensees’ and distributorasbility to obtain adequate financing to maintaireigtions and result in a decrease in sales voltaatecoul
have a negative impact on our business, financiaflition and results of operations. Our televigi@amtners derive revenues from the sa
advertising. We also sell advertising directly our avebsite and in our magazines and, depending tlperdistribution methods used
monetize additional content, we may have additicadWertising to sell. Softness in the advertisingrikets, due to a weak econo
environment or otherwise, could adversely affectremenues or the financial viability of our disuiors.

Our accounts receivable represent a significant paion of our current assets and relate principally b a limited number of distributors
and licensees, increasing our exposure to bad delasd could potentially have a material adverse affg on our results of operations.

A substantial portion of our accounts receivabke faom distributors of our pay-perew, television, home video and magazine prodact
licensees who produce consumer products contaoungntellectual trademarks. The concentration wf accounts receivable across a lim
number of distributors subjects us to individuatdit risk with respect to such parties. Additiopalhdverse changes in general econ
conditions and/or contraction in global credit metskcould precipitate liquidity problems among debtors, including our key distribut
and/or licensees. This could increase our expotuiesses from bad debts and have a material agheaffect on our business, finan
condition and results of operations.
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Our ability to access our revolving credit facility may be limited due to certain financial covenantand restrictions.

We believe that during the next twelve months whk mdave access to funds under the credit facilitymeeded, however this will require
amendment of certain covenants. While we believdenders would consent to this amendment, no assarcan be given in this regard. In
event the Company falls out of compliance with onenore of the debt covenants under the facilitymagy not be successful in obtaining
amendment or waiver for any such nmympliance. Additionally while we may be able tnend the facility, such amendment may be or
advantageous terms. Our inability to obtain adezjgapital could have a material adverse effectwrnbasiness, financial condition, liquid
and operating results.

We could incur substantial liabilities if litigation is resolved unfavorably.

In the ordinary course of business we become suljegarious complaints and litigation matters. Tdecome of litigation is inheren
difficult to assess and quantify, and the defergsérest such claims or actions can be costly and tionsuming for management. Any adv
judgment significantly in excess of our insuranoeerage could adversely affect our financial cdodibr results of operation

Failure to meet market expectations for our financal performance could adversely affect the market pice and volatility of our stock.

We believe that the price of our stock generalfiects high market expectations for our future apiag results. Any failure to meet or dela
meeting these expectations, including as a re$udtfailure to renew domestic television agreememdavorable terms, and/or the failure
WWE Network to achieve expectations, could causentarket price of our stock to decline.

Through his beneficial ownership of a majority of ar Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon can exerciseonitrol over our affairs, and
his interests may conflict with the holders of ouiClass A common stock.

We have Class A common stock and Class B commatk.stte holders of Class A common stock generalyelrights identical to holders
Class B common stock, except that holders of CAassmmon stock are entitled to one vote per shemd, holders of Class B common st
are entitled to ten votes per share. Holders di btatsses of common stock generally will vote tbgeis a single class on all matters pres:
to stockholders for their vote or approval, exapbtherwise required by applicable Delaware law.

A substantial majority of the issued and outstagdihares of Class B common stock is owned benkyidig Vincent K. McMahon. Mi
McMahon controls a majority of the voting powertbé issued and outstanding shares of our commahk.sttirough his beneficial owners
of a substantial majority of our Class B commorcktdr. McMahon effectively can exercise controleowur affairs, and his interest co
conflict with the holders of our Class A commoncstoln addition, the voting power of Mr. McMahorrdlugh his ownership of our Clas:
common stock could discourage others from init@agpotential mergers, takeovers or other changeoofrol transactions. As a result,
market price of our Class A common stock could idecl

To the extent the Companys dividend distributions represent a return of capial for tax purposes, shareholders will recognize 1z
increased capital gain upon a subsequent sale ofgtlCompany’s Common Stock.

The Companys aggregate dividend distributions paid in 2013eniar excess of its current and accumulated earramgisprofits calculate
under applicable Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) jgmns. Under the IRC, distributions in excess athbthe Company current earnings a
profits and the Company’s accumulated earningspmofits constitute a return of capital and reduoe $tockholdes adjusted tax basis in
Common Stock. If a stockholdsradjusted basis in its Common Stock is reduceeéito, these excess distributions thereafter comstit capit:
gain to the stockholder.
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Our dividend is significant and is affected by a nmber of factors.

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates the Canys Common Stock dividend policy and determines iki&end rate each quarter. 1
level of dividends will continue to be influenced imany factors, including, among other things, loquidity and historical and projected ci
flow, our strategic plan (including alternative sisef capital), our financial results and conditimontractual and legal restrictions on
payment of dividends (including under our revolvirgdit facility), general economic and competitognditions and such other factors as
Board of Directors may consider relevant from tirméime. We cannot assure our stockholders thatieinds will be paid in the future, or tt
if paid, dividends will be at the same amount ottmvthe same frequency as in the past. Any redudtiayur dividend payments could hav
negative effect on our stock price.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for sal by Mr. McMahon and members of his family or trust established for their benefit
and the sale of those shares could lower our stogkice.

All of the issued and outstanding shares of Clag®fmon stock are held by Vincent McMahon and othembers of the McMahon fam
and trusts set up for these family members. Sdlsalstantial amounts of these shares, or the pgocethat such sales could occur, may Ic
the prevailing market price of our Class A commtwck. If any sales or transfers of Class B comntookswere to occur to persons outsid
the McMahon family, the shares would automaticafipvert into Class A common stock.

Our Class A common stock has a relatively small pute "float.”

Historically, as a result of our relatively smallidic float, our Class A common stock has been ligsgd than the common stock of compal
with broader public ownership, and the trading gsifor our Class A common stock have been mordileothan generally may be the case
more widelyheld common stock. Among other things, trading oélatively small volume of our Class A common &t@cay have a greal
impact on the trading price of our Class A commimtls than would be the case if our public float evkrger.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

Item 2. Properties

We have executive offices, television and musiorming studios, pogtroduction operations and warehouses at locationgr inea
Stamford, Connecticut. We also have sales offineéw York, Los Angeles, Atlanta and Chicago andehiternational offices in Londc
Tokyo, Shanghai, Istanbul and Mumbai. We own twdhaf buildings in which our executive and admigittte offices, our television a
music recording studios and our production openatire located. We lease space for our sales &ffil#®VE Studios office and other faciliti¢

In order to allow for future growth, starting in 2} we began expanding our content productionifi@sl We leased additional spaci
Norwalk and Stamford, Connecticut to accommodateexpansion of increased content production anttibligion activities, including tt
launch of WWE Network.
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Our principal properties consist of the following:

Expiration Date of

Facility Location Lease

Square Feet Owned/Leasec

Warehouse space Norwalk, CT 103,50( Leased January 2020

Various through

Corporate offices and production facilities Stamford, CT 37,00( Leased September 2016

Various through October
Sales offices Various 19,00( Leased 2022

Warehouse space

Stamford, CT 5,60( Leased May 2015

All of the facilities listed above are utilized aur Live and Televised Entertainment, Consumer &etsdand Digital Media segments, v
the exception of the WWE Studios office in Los Alege which focuses on our WWE Studios segment.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding

We are involved in several suits and claims thatamsider to be in the ordinary course of our bessn By its nature, the outcome of litiga
is not known but the Company does not currentlyeekfis pending litigation to have a material adeegffect on our financial condition, res
of operations or liquidity. We may from time to #nbecome a party to other legal proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not Applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters argslier Purchases of Equity Securities
Our Class A common stock trades on the New YorklSExchange, under the symbol "WWE".

The following table sets forth the high ané thw sale prices per share of our Class A comniocksas reported by the New York St
Exchange and the dividends paid per share of @laswd Class B common stock for the periods inditate

Fiscal Year 2013

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 8.9(C % 103 $ 1137 % 16.9¢ % 16.9¢
Low $ 791 $ 85¢ $ 9.6z $ 10.1¢ $ 7.91
Class A dividends paid per share $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.4¢
Class B dividends paid per share $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.4¢

Fiscal Year 2012

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 9.9t $ 9.0¢ 8.9¢ $ 8.8¢ $ 9.9t
Low $ 8.61 $ 7.4, % 754 $ 75C $ 7.44
Class A dividends paid per share $ 0.1z % 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z % 0.4¢
Class B dividends paid per share $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.4¢

There were 8,206 holders of record of ClassofMmon stock and six holders of record of ClassoBirmon stock on February 20, 2C
Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Ditest and Chief Executive Officer, controls a subtiséhmajority of the voting power
the issued and outstanding shares of our commaeR,stad as a result can effectively exercise cootrer our affairs.

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible if@tass A common stock, on a one for one basis, atiare at the option of the holder. 1
two classes are entitled to equal per share didislamd distributions and vote together as a clétsseach share of Class B entitled to ten v
and each share of Class A entitled to one votegpixwhen separate class voting is required by el law. If, at any time, any share:
Class B common stock are beneficially owned by pengon other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahary descendant of either of the
any entity which is wholly owned and is controllbg any combination of such persons or any trustthal beneficiaries of which are ¢
combination of such persons, each of those shatesutomatically convert into shares of Class Argoon stock.

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates the Canys Common Stock dividend policy and determines thieleind rate each quarter. 1
level of dividends will continue to be influenced imany factors, including, among other things, loquidity and historical and projected ci
flow, our strategic plan (including alternative sisef capital), our financial results and conditimontractual and legal restrictions on
payment of dividends (including under our revolvirgdit facility), general economic and competitoanditions and such other factors as
Board of Directors may consider relevant from tirméime. We cannot assure our stockholders thatieinds will be paid in the future, or tt
if paid, dividends will be at the same amount ottvthe same frequency as in the past. Any redudtiayur dividend payments could hav
negative effect on our stock price.
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In 2011, the Company entered into a $200 milliovoheing credit facility. In April 2013, the Compamgmended and restated the revol
credit facility. The revolving credit facility rastts our ability to pay dividends if a default event of default has occurred and is contin
thereunder, if our consolidated leverage ratiodasulated under the revolving credit facility) erds 2.8:1.0 or if our consolidated fi.
charge coverage ratio (as calculated under thelwiegocredit facility) does not exceed 1.25:1.0. A6 December 31, 2013, we are
compliance with the provisions of the revolvingditdacility and are not restricted from paying idiends to our stockholders.

Cumulative Total Return Chart

Set forth below is a line graph comparing, for ffegiod commencing December 31, 2008 and ended Dmre®i, 2013, the cumulative tc
return on our Class A common stock compared tocthraulative total return of the Russell 2000 Indexl &&P Movies and Entertainmu
Index, a published industry index. The graph assuthe investment of $100 at the close of tradingfadecember 31, 2008 in our Clas
common stock, the Russell 2000 Index and the S&Ridoand Entertainment Index and the reinvestmiall dividends.

Total Return Performance
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Period Ending
fndex 12131/08 12/31/09 12/31110 123111 1213112 1231113
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 100.00 15443 157.26 109.98 98.60 217.04
Russell 2000 100.00 127.17 161.32 154.59 179.86 249.69
S&P Movies & Entertainment 100.00 147 64 172.36 191.90 258.38 401.95
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat

The following selected consolidated financial dadés been derived from our consolidated financitestents. You should read the sele
financial data in conjunction with our consolidatitancial statements and related notes and thernrdtion set forth under “Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebsults of Operations” contained elsewhere inréyiort.

Financial Highlights: (in millions)

For the year ended December 31,
2013 (1) 2012 (2) 2011(3) 2010 2009 (4)

Net revenues $ 508.C $ 484.C $ 483.¢ $ 4777 $ 475
Operating income $ 56 $ 43z $ 37.C $ 82: % 77.1
Net income $ 28 % 314 $ 24& $ 53t $ 50.2
Earnings per share, basic $ 0.0¢ $ 04z $ 03 $ 07z % 0.6¢
Earnings per share, diluted $ 0.04 $ 04z $ 03 $ 071 % 0.6¢
Dividends paid per Class A share $ 0.4¢ % 04¢ $ 072 $ 144 % 1.44
Dividends paid per Class B share $ 0.48 $ 048 $ 06C $ 09 $ 0.9¢
As of December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 109« $ 152¢« $ 1558 $ 166.¢ $ 208.C
Total assets $ 3785 $ 381l $ 378 $ 4157 $  440.
Total debt $ 296 $ — 3 1€ $ 2¢& ¢ 3.¢
Total stockholders’ equity $ 265¢ $ 2947 $ 29571 $ 316.7 $ 337«

(1) Operating income includes impairment chargesur feature films of $11.7 millio(See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Stateshemid $10.
million associated with our emerging content arstriiution efforts, including WWE Network, partiglbffset by the positive impact of $3.4 milli
resulting from the transition of our video gametoew licensee.

(2) Operating income includes $8.2 million of costsuimed associated with our emerging content andilligion efforts, including WWE Networ
offset by the impact of a $4.4 million tax beneélating to previously unrecognized tax benefits.

(3) Operating income includes impairment charges onfeature films of $23.4 million (See Note 7 to fiensolidated Financial Statements) and
million associated with our emerging content anstritiution efforts, including WWE Network. Resufisr 2011 do not include amounts
management incentive compensation since the Congidmpot meet performance targets.

(4) Operating income includes a charge of $7.4 milliglating to an allowance recorded against a reb&wdue from a former distribution partr
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Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionna Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in congimt with the audited consolidated financial states and related notes inclu
elsewhere in this report.

Background

The following analysis outlines all material actie#s contained within each of our reportable segmen

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ lavents, sales of merchandise at these live evetasision rights fees, integra
sponsorships fees, and fees for viewing our payvjew and video-on-demand programming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct salesWOVE produced content via home entertainment (DMD#RY), magazin

publishing and royalties or license fees relatedairgous WWE themed products such as video garogs,and apparel.
Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising saleor websites, rights fees received for digitatteat, sale of merchandise on

website through our WWEShop internet storefront salds of various broadband and mobile content.

WWE Studios

e Revenues consist of amounts earned from the disiib of filmed entertainmer

Results of Operations

Beginning in the first quarter of 2013, the Compamgde changes to its operating plan and manageewmntting to reflect a change in
measurement used by management to evaluate perfoem@he Company changed its measure of segmefit (fogs) to operating incon
(loss) before depreciation and amortization, orBOA". Prior to 2013, the Company's results of ofierss analysis included a discussiol
profit contribution. The Company revised its dissioa of results of operations for prior periodsréflect the segment disclosures as if
current measure of profit (loss), OIBDA, had beeeffect throughout all periods presented.

The Company presents OIBDA as the primary measfiegment profit (loss). The Company believes thesgntation of OIBDA
relevant and useful for investors because it allmwvsstors to view our segment performance in #ftireesmanner as the primary method use
management to evaluate performance and make dexiglmut allocating resources. The Company defiB®OA as operating income befc
depreciation and amortization, excluding featulra fimortization and film impairments. OIBDA is amGAAP financial measure and may
different than similarly-titled noiGAAP financial measures used by other companiemaation of OIBDA is that it excludes depreciat
and amortization, which represents the periodicgéor certain fixed assets and intangible aasests in generating revenues for our busil
OIBDA should not be regarded as an alternativeprating income or net income as an indicator efrating performance, or to the stater
of cash flows as a measure of liquidity, nor shaulske considered in isolation or as a substitotefihancial measures prepared in accord
with GAAP. We believe that operating income is thest directly comparable GAAP financial measureOIBDA. See Note 18Segmet
Information in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statésnéor a reconciliation of OIBDA to operating incenfor the perioc
presented.
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2013 compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2012
(dollars in millions)

Summary

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 382 % 353.¢ 8%

Digital Media 38.5 34.5 12%

Total 508.( 484.( 5%

OIBDA

Consumer Products 40.¢ 48.¢ (16)%

WWE Studios (12.7) (5.5) 131%

Total 30. 63. (52)%

Operating income 5.¢ 43.2 (86)%

Income before income taxes 4.€ 421 (89)%

Net income $ 28 % 31.4 (91)%

The comparability of our results for 2013 was icted by $11.7 milliorof impairment charges related to our film portfoliocluding $4.
million and $0.9 million, forDead Man Dowrand No One Lives respectively, which were 2013 releases and $6lliomfrom previousl
released films and an approximate $3.4 million fpasiimpact from the transition of our video gamssimess to a new licensda.2012, ou
results were impacted by a $1.2 million impairmeharge related to our two feature filmBending the Ruleand Barricade, and the
recognition of a $4.4 million benefit due to prewsty unrecognized tax benefits.

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment reegnncreased 8% primarily due to a $21.4 millinarease in our television rigl
business from additional television programmingr Gonsumer Products segment experienced ad&%ease in revenues primarily driver
an $8.7 million decline in our home entertainmensibess. Our Digital Media segment experienced % itzrease in revenues, prima
driven by higher sales of online advertising. OUW® Studios segment experienced a 3A%ease in revenues due in part to the Nove
2013 release dfhristmas Bounty a made-for-television production, and from ounima@ortfolio.
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Live and Televised Entertainment

The following tables present the performance resadd key drivers for our Live and Televised Emt@rnent segment:

Live events $ 1115 $ 103.7 8%

International $ 301 % 31.6
- Totlliveeventatendance 1924100 1854100
Number of North American events 25€ 24¢ 3%
- Average North American attendance ~ 600C 5% 2%
Average North American ticket price (dollars) $ 48.6: % 45.3¢ 7%
- Numberofinternationalevents 6 66 (9%
Average international attendance 5,90( 6,00(

Venue merchandise

Pay-per-view $ 82t % 83.€

Number of buys of pay-per-views 3,838,001 4,023,001

Domestic retail pricé&/restleMania(dollars) $ 599t §$ 54,9t 9 %

Television rights fees $ 160.¢ $ 139. 15 %

International $ 55.C % 50.¢€ 9%

Total $ 382 ¢ 353.¢ 8%

Average weekly household ratings RAW 3.4 3.3 3%

Average weekly household ratings WéWWE Main Event 0.8 0.8 13%

Live events $ 301 § 26.5 14%

Pay-per-view 34.1 44.¢

Other (10.9) (5.0 11€ %

OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 31% 36%
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Live events revenues increased by $7.8 milim2013 as compared to 2012. Revenues from ouhNarterica live events business incree
$9.3 million or 13% due in part to a strong perfanoe of our annualrestleManiaevent which contributed $3.6 million in incrementiaket
revenue in the current year. In addition, we hédghtemore events and experienced aifgsease in average ticket prices in 2013 as coet
to 2012. Our international live events businesgetesed $1.5 millioin the current year primarily due to lower attentimand a decrease
average ticket prices partially offset by strongt#endance at the events held during our Europmanirt the current year and higher ave
ticket prices from the tour in Abu Dhabi. The dexse in average attendance was predominantly dventee mix. The live events OIBDA a
percentage of revenues increased to 27% in 2003 2696 in 2012.

Venue merchandise revenues increased by $llinmn 2013 as compared to 2012. Increased sales afhaedise at our domestic ¢
Canadian events were partially offset by lowernmi¢ional licensing revenues. Total paid attendaar domestic events increased 5% v
the per capita merchandise spend at those everrtsaded 4% to $10.24 the current year. The venue merchandise OIBDA psrcentage
revenues increased to 39% from 36% in 2012.

Pay-per-view revenues decreased by $1.1 miffiom 2012, primarily as result of a 5% declinghe number of pay-periew buys in 201!
This decrease was partially offset by a #fifrease in average revenue per buy from 2012idymrt, to an increase in the domestic retailq
charged for viewingNrestleManiaand higher retail prices charged for viewing ouergs in high definition. The pay-pgrew OIBDA as i
percentage of revenues decreased to 41% in 20485466 in 2012 due primarily to an additional $5.ilion in talent related expenses.

Television rights fees revenues increased by $&1ilkbn in 2013 as compared to 2012. Domestically, telenisights fees increased
$17.0 million, primarily due to the production and licensingnefv programs. During the third quarter of 2013,debuted a new televisi
series,Total Divas,which is carried on the E! Network. In addition,120includes the full year impact of programing @aatuced in 201.
particularly, an additional hour dRAWto the USA Network, as well as rights fees for aiginal series WWE Main Evenbn the IOM
Television Network. The television rights fees OIB@s a percentage of revenues decreased to 36% F83min 2012 primarily due 1
increased production costs.

Other Live and Televised OIBDA was a loss of $1iion in 2013 as compared to a loss of $5.0 millin 2012. This increase is a re:
of additional talent compensation and travel relatests.
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Consumer Products

The following tables present the performance resaid key drivers for our Consumer Products segfaeiiars in millions):

increase
RevenuesConsumer Products 2013 2012 (decrease)
Licensing $ 43¢ 3 46.% (6)%
Home entertainment $ 24 % 33.C (26)%
Gross units shipped 3,987,20i 3,775,801 6 %
Magazine publishing $ 57 % 6.C (5)%
Net units sold 1,843,101 2,003,501 (8)%
Other $ 28 % 25 12 %
Total $ 764 $ 87.¢ (19)%
increase
OIBDA -Consumer Products 2013 2012 (decrease)
Licensing $ 31 % 32.2 (3)%
Home entertainment 8.€ 15.¢ (43)%
Magazine publishing 0.1 0.4 (75)%
Other 0.€ 0.t 20%
Total $ 406 % 48.¢ (16)%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 53% 55%

Licensing revenues decreased by $2.7 miilio2013 as compared to 2012, reflecting a declinevenue from sales of toys, video games
other products both domestically and internatignalhe current year period reflected an estimata@ #illion positive impact associated v
the bankruptcy of our former video game licensd¢QT and the transition to a new video game licensakeTwo Interactive. As a result
THQ's bankruptcy, we did not collect or recognizgoation of anticipated royalties due in 2013. Tfere, despite the positive impact of
transition of our video game license on revenue iandme in the first quarter, WWE incurred an esti® economic loss of approxima
$3.0 million stemming from foregone video game ngtse Overall, sales of our video game declinedrepmately 11% due in part to low
effective pricing from 2012. Licensing OIBDA as arpentage of revenues was 72% in 2013 compare@%uoiry 2012 partially as a result
product mix.

Home entertainment revenues decreased by $8.7omili 26%in 2013 as compared to 2012. Domestic home ementait revenue fe
approximately $6.4 million, or 23%, as a 6% inceeasshipments to 4.0 million units was more thffisetd by lower selkhrough rates and
13% decline in the average price per unit to $9édl@cting a shift in product mix and retail demdndlower priced product. Additionally, v
released 28 titles in 2013 compared to 35 title20ih2.

Revenue from our international home entertainmetiviies declined by approximately $2.3 millionfleeting lower sales in Canada ¢
the transition to a new licensee in the EMEA regiblome entertainment OIBDA as a percentage of neeerdecreased to 36 201:
compared to 47% in 2012 due to lower sell-throwmgbs and higher talent expenses.

Magazine publishing revenues decreased by $0.3omiih 2013 as compared to 2012. Net units soldedesed by 8%lriven by weake
newsstand demand and lower subscription revenuiéMWWE Kidsmagazine reflecting, in part, the continued ovedaltline in the magazi
publishing industry. We published twelve issueS\WMVE Magazinggn issues o?WWE Kidsnagazine and three special issues both in 201
in 2012. Publishing OIBDA as a percentage of reesnuas 2% in 2013 compared to #2012, as a result of the decrease in revenuglec
with constant unit production costs year over year.
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Digital Media

The following tables present the performance redolt our Digital Media segment (dollars in millgrexcept where noted):

WWE.com $ 23 % :
Total $ 38 $ 34.F 12 %

WWE.com $ 58 % (33)%

Total $ 78 % (23%

WWE.com revenues increased by $3.3 millioi2013 as compared to 2012 due to the increménfact of the Company's launch of dig
distribution of our pay-peview events across several new platforms and highless of advertising across various digital plat WWE.cor
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues decreased toi@42013 from 42%n 2012 due to hiring of new personnel to suppdgital conten
initiatives.

WWEShop revenues increased by $0.7 million in 26d®pared to 2012, driven by a 4% increase in thabeu of orders to 320,200
Average revenue per order increased slightly bytd%48.10. WWEShop OIBDA as a percentage of revenues rerdaelatively flat in th
periods.
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WWE Studios

The following table provides detailed informatiom our WWE Studios’ segment (in millions):

Feature
Film
Production For the Year Ended December 31,
Release  Production ASSEISNétas —pcention to-date Revenue OIBDA
of Dec 31,
Title Date Costs* 2013 Revenue  OIBDA 2013 2012 2013 2012

2013
Christmas Bounty Nov 2013 $ 37 $ 01 $ 41 $ 0€ $ 4.1 $N/A $ 0€ $ N/A
12Rounds 2: Reloaded June 2013 1.t 1.4 — — — N/A — N/A
No One Lives May 2013 2.2 0.4 0.¢ (0.8 0.¢ N/A (0.9 N/A
The Call Mar 2013 1.C 1.0 0.2 0.3 0.2 N/A .3 N/A
Dead Man Down Mar 2013 5.8 1.0 — 4.7 — N/A (4.7) N/A
The Marine 3:
Homefront Mar 2013 1.t 14 0.1 — 0.1 N/A — N/A

15.7 5.3 5.4 (4.€) 5.4 — (4.6 —
2012
Barricade Sept 2012 4.1 0.1 1.2 (4.0) 0.4 0.8 (0.5) (2.9
The Day Aug 2012 — — 0.2 0.2 0.2 — 0.2 —
No Holds Barred July 2012 — — 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.4 0.2 0.1
Bending the Rules Mar 2012 5.5 — 1.C (5.9) 0.1 0.¢ (0.7) (1.5

9.€ 0.1 3.1 (8.9 1.C 2.1 (0.9 (2.7)

Prior Releases 106.7 4.0 98.¢ (22.¢) 4.4 5.8 (3.9 0.1
Completed but not released 3.1 3.1 — — — — — —
In production 2.7 2.7 — — — — — —
In development 0.8 0.8 — 4. — — — (1.0
Sub-total $ 138.¢ $ 16 $ 10771 $ (4049 $ 108 $ 7¢ $ (92 $ (3.6
Selling, General &
Administrative
Expenses (3.5 (1.9
Total $ (127 $ (5.9

* Production costs are presented net of the agsockenefit of production incentives.

During 2013, we released three feature films k&atrical distributionNo One Lives Dead Man DowrandThe Call,two films, 12 Round
2: Reloadedand The Marine 3: Homefrontlirect to DVD and one made-for-television movighristmas Bounty Thirdparty distributor
control the distribution and marketing of thesenfiland, as a result, we recognize revenue on lzaset after the thirgarty distributor recouj
distribution fees and expenses and results arategpto us. Results are typically reported to upéniods subsequent to the initial releas
these films.

WWE Studios recorded revenues of $10.8 millionZ0t3 compared to $7.9 million for 2012, an increafs$2.9 million or 37% Revenue
for WWE Studios is impacted by the timing of odnfireleases and change in our distribution modeé ificrease in revenue in the current
is primarily related to the made-for-television me\Christmas Bountywhich was released in the fourth quarter of 201ghdugh, there we
five feature films released in 2013 compared ta fdms released in 2012, revenues for these 2@% fwill be recognized on a net basit
participation statements are received rather tipeom welease as was the case with our self-distribtitles, includingChristmas Bounty WWE
Studios OIBDA decreased $7.2 million in 2013 as parad to 2012, primarily as a result of recordimgairment charges of $11.7 milliom
2013 compared with $1.2 million in 2012.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had $16l®m(net of accumulated amortization and impairment@és) of feature film productit
assets capitalized on its Consolidated BalancetSbewhich $9.4 million relates to films completadd in release and $6.6 millioelates t



various films not yet released. We review and mestimates of ultimate revenue and participation

29




Table of Contents

costs at each reporting period to reflect the maostent information available. If estimates foiilenfs ultimate revenue are revised and indi
a significant decline in a filng’ profitability or if events or circumstances chartlgat indicate we should assess whether the dhievof a film i
less than its unamortized film costs, we calcuthgfilm's estimated fair value using a discountadh flow model. If fair value is less tt
unamortized cost, the film asset is written dowifaio value. In 2013, the Company recorded impaimstotaling $11.7 million, including $4
million and $0.9 million, forDead Man DowrandNo One Lives respectively, which were 2013 releases and $6lliomfrom previousl
released films. During 2012, we recorded impairnudatrges of $1.2 million related to the featurnm$)Bending the RuleandBarricade.

Unallocated Corporate Expenses

The following table presents the amounts and péid®mge of certain significant unallocated corpmexpenses (dollars in millions):

increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Staff related $ 52t % 47.2 11%
Management incentive compensation 7.2 10.4 (31)%
Legal, accounting and other professional 20.€ 17.2 20%
Travel and entertainment expenses 5.2 4.2 26 %
Advertising, marketing and promotion 9.1 6.€ 32%
Corporate insurance 4.C 3.¢ 3%
Bad debt expense — 2.t (2100)%
All other 26.£ 24.% 9%
Total unallocated corporate expenses $ 1251 % 116.7 7%

Unallocated corporate expenses as a percentage fuenues 25% 24%

Unallocated corporate expenses increased by $8lébmmor 7%in 2013 compared to 2012. This was primarily duéntveased expens
related to supporting our content related initiasivincluding the launch of WWE Network in 2014 vasl as to develop our advertising si
and international infrastructure, partially off&gtdecreased management incentive compensatioto @04 3 operating performance.

Depreciation and Amortization
(dollars in millions)

increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Depreciation and amortization $ 245 % 20.C 23%

Depreciation and amortization expense increase®ddy million , or 23% in 2013 compared to 2012. Depreciation expens@0a@3 reflect
higher property and equipment balances to supporémerging content and distribution efforts, imtthg our new WWE Network.

Investment Income, Interest Expense and Other Expese, Net
(dollars in millions)

increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Investment income, interest expense and other egpeet $ 19 $ (0.5) 16(%

Investment income, interest and other expenseyiakted an expense of $1.3 million in 2013 compawe®0.5 millionin 2012, reflectin
lower interest and investment income.
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Income Taxes
(dollars in millions)

increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Provision for income taxes $ 18 3 11.2 (84)%

Effective tax rate 40% 26%

The 2012 effective tax rate was positively impadigds4.4 millionof previously unrecognized tax benefits primariyated to the settlement
various audits, including the State of Connectithig IRS, and other state and local jurisdictiofise current year effective tax rate \
negatively impacted due to the size of permandfdrdnces relative to our pre-tax income, i.e.aarhondeductible expenses are driving
effective rate higher due to decreased income denehe current year.

31




Table of Contents

Year Ended December 31, 2012 compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2011
(dollars in millions)

Summary

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 353.¢ $ 340.( 4%

Digital Media 34.t 28.1 23%

Total 484.( 483.¢ — %

IBDA

Consumer Products 48.€ 51.C (5)%

WWE Studios (5.5) (29.9) (81)%

Total 63.2 52.C 22%

Operating income 43.2 37.C 17%

Income before income taxes 42.7 36.¢ 16 %

Net income $ 314 % 24.¢ 27 %

The comparability of our results for 2012 was pesly impacted by the recognition of approximat&4.4 million in previously unrecogniz
tax benefits. We also incurred $8.2 million in agterg expenses associated with our emerging coarmhiistribution efforts and recorde
$1.2 million impairment charge relating to our tfeature filmsBending the RuleandBarricadein 2012 compared to $4.0 million in opera
expenses associated with our emerging content mtiibdtion effort and $23.4 million in impairmenbharges for nine feature films in 20
Additionally, 2012 results reflect the return to mamormalized levels of management incentive corsgion, which resulted in increa:
expense of $9.8 million before taxes in 2012 cormpdo 2011

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segmewemues increased primarily due to the increaseshtes in our pay-pefiew and televisio
rights business of 7% and 6%, respectively. OursOorer Products segment experienced a 7% declirevénues reflecting declines in
licensing business and magazine publishing busi@ssDigital Media segment experienced a 23% m®edn revenues, driven by increme
fees from new agreements entered into with YouTalé Hulu. Our WWE Studios segment reflected a $13illon decrease in reven
primarily due to the timing and number of film rases.




The following tables present the performance resadd key drivers for our Live and Televised Emt@rnent segment:

©

Live events 1037 % 104.7 ()%

©

31.¢

©

International 39.¢ 21)%

Number of North American events 24¢ 241 3%

©

Average North American ticket price (dollars) 453¢ % 42.11 8 %

Average international attendance 6,00( 6,70( (10)%

&

Venue merchandise 186  $ 18.2 3%

©“

83.¢

&

Pay-per-view 78.2 7%

Number of buys of pay-per-views 4,023,001 3,842,101 5%

Domestic retail pricé&/restleMania(dollars) $ 549t % 54,9t — %

[=)

Television rights fees $ 1398 % 131t 6 %

©“

International $ 50.€ 51.2 ()%

Total $ 353¢ % 340.( 4.1%

Average weekly household ratings RAW 3.2 3.€ (8)%

o
o

Average weekly household ratings WéWWE Main Event N/A

&
N
»
en
&

Live events 26.€ (D%

Pay-per-view 44.¢ 39.¢ 13%

Other (5.0 (2.9 72%

OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 36% 36%
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Live events revenues decreased $1.0 million in 2842compared to 2011 primarily due to seven fewemes held during 2012. C
international live events business decreased $8lidm primarily driven by fourteen fewer eventeltl during 2012. Average attendance a
international events declined 10% to 6,000 attemae®l international ticket prices increased by 892012 as compared to 2011. Our N
American live events business increased by $7.komidluring 2012, primarily due to the strong penfance of our annu&l/restleManiseven
held during 2012 which generated $3.3 million miorécket sales than the prior year event. Averégeet prices for our North America eve
increased by 8% to $45.39. We also experienceche@ase in event sponsorship revenues of $1.0omillCost of revenue for live eve
decreased by $1.5 million, primarily due to lowenue related expenses which was partially offsetdmjtional sponsorship expenses. The
events OIBDA as a percentage of revenues was 26%6tm2012 and 2011.

Venue merchandise revenues increased $0.bmili 2012 as compared to 2011. This increaseiisapily due to a 3% increase in Nc
America events held in 2012 as compared to 2015t Gbrevenue for venue merchandise increased &dl®n from 2011, driven b
increased costs of materials due to product mixa Assult, venue merchandise OIBDA as a percerghgm/enues decreased to 36% fraa¥
in 2011.

Pay-periew revenues increased $5.3 million from 201 Lmarily due to a 5% increase in total buys and airdéease in average revel
per buy. The growth in buys for 2012 events wasl@manantly due to an increase in buys for bdrestleManiaand SummerSlanevents
which was partially offset by the elimination ofemrvent in the current yearhe increase in the average revenue per buy ibwtble t
incremental fees charged for viewing our eventsigi definition, which was implemented in 2008. Cafsrevenues for pay-petiew remaine
flat from 2011, driven primarily by increases itet& expenses which was offset by lower productiosts partially driven by the receipt
television production tax credits associated wifiriar year event. The pay-per-view OIBDA as a patage of revenues increased to 546
51% in 2011.

Television rights fees increased $8.0 million2012 compared to 2011. Domestically, televisiwhts fees increased by $8.6 milli
primarily due to incremental license fees from freduction and distribution of new programs andt@iual increases from our exist
programs. An additional hour of olRAW program was licensed to USA Network and debuteduly 2012. Moreover, during 2012,
produced two new original series, MMBVE Main Evenivhich airs on the lon Television Network a8dturday Morning Slamwhich aired o
the CW Network. This was partially offset by thesabce of rights fees from oWWE Superstansrogram, which moved to WWE.com in Aj
2011. Internationally, our television rights feeecteased by $0.6 million, primarily due to the eapdn and nomenewal of our South Kor
distribution agreement. Television rights costefenues increased by $6.6 million in 2012 due ghidii direct costs for staff related exper
including the reset of management incentive comgt@s as compared to 2011. As a result, televisights fee OIBDA as a percentage
revenues decreased to 38% from 40% in 2011.
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Consumer Products

The following tables present performance resultsleey drivers for our Consumer Products segmentafdan millions):

increase
RevenuesConsumer Products 2012 2011 (decrease)
Licensing $ 46.2 % 54.4 (15)%
Home entertainment $ 33.C $ 30.£ 9%
Gross units shipped 3,775,801 3,300,001 14%
Magazine publishing $ 6 9 7.7 22)%
Net units sold 2,003,501 2,344,801 (15)%
Other $ 28  $ 24 4 %
Total $ 87.t % 94.¢ (M%
increase
OIBDA -Consumer Products 2012 2011 (decrease)
Licensing $ 32 % 37.C (13)%
Home entertainment 15.¢ 13.7 12%
Magazine publishing 0.4 (0.2 30C %
Other 0.t 0.t — %
Total $ 48€ $ 51.C (5)%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 55% 54%

Licensing revenues decreased $8.1 million in2284 compared 2011, as weaker performance in dan\game category was offset in pai
increases in our collectibles category. Our vidamg licensing revenues decreased $7.8 million k22@rimarily due to one fewer relee
WWE All Starswhich was originally released in March 2011 and wasrefreshed in 2012. In addition, we experiengaed2% decline in ur
shipments of our franchise video game release 12 20mpared to unit shipments of our comparableo/igime release in 2011. The declir
unit shipments of our annual franchise video gaelease was due to difficult trends in our intermai markets, broader industry challer
and a reduction in the number of gaming platforha supported our franchise video game. Licensosj of revenues decreased $3.8 mi
from 2011, primarily due to lower talent expensige by the mix of products sold. Licensing OIBDA @ percentage of revenues was 10%
2012 compared to 68% in 2011 partially as a redfysroduct mix.

On December 19, 2012, our former video game licerddQ declared bankruptcy. In February 2013, thenfany and THQ reached
agreement to terminate its video game license, wiaigreement was approved by the U.S. BankruptcyrtGmu February 19, 2013.
connection with this termination, the Company wdives rights to the preetition amounts due under its license agreemetiit WHQ, an
THQ agreed to transfer certain intellectual propeghts and paid post-petition royalties to WWEegrly 2013.

In connection with the THQ license termination, @@mpany recognized approximately $8.0 million@fenue during the first quarter of 2(
relating to the unrecognized portion of an advaeceived when the Company entered into the licagseement with THQ in 2009. As a re
of THQ's bankruptcy, the Company was not able ttecband recognize a portion of anticipated ragaltdue in the first quarter of 2013
approximately $4.0 million to $5.0 million. Thisds did not have a material adverse effect on thepany's business, financial conditior
results of operations. After termination with TH®e Company entered into a multi-year agreement WitkeTwo to be the Company's vic
game licensee. TakBwvo assumed distribution of our existing catalogviofeo games, and developing, publishing and 8istimg new titles
beginning with the release of the Company's anfiaathise game WWE2K14 in late 2013.

Magazine publishing revenues decreased $1llibmin 2012 as compared to 2011, driven by wealewrsstand demand as a result o
continued overall decline in the magazine publighimdustry. Net units sold decreased by 15%, dhrtéue to a decline in the number
issues published. We published twelve issueSVWOYE Magazing ten issues ofWWE Kidsmagazine and three special issues in 20:
compared to twelve, ten and six, respectively,0a12 Cost of revenues decreased by $2.2 milliomapily as a result of a 29% decreas
unit production. Publishing OIBDA, which increadeyl $0.6 million, as a percentage of revenues wasn/2012 compared to a loss of 3f6
2011.

Home entertainment revenues increased $2I6mih 2012 as compared to 2011 primarily due th486 increase in units shipped
improved seltthrough rates at retail, which were partially offeg a 15% decline in average sales price per Wi.released 35 titles in 2C
compared to 28 titles in 2011. Additionally, we expnced growth in international markets and digita
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sales of $0.6 million and $0.3 million, respectiveHome entertainment cost of revenues increasefilb§ million from 2011 due to higt
costs associated with duplication. Home entertairi#BDA as a percentage of revenues increased@%oif 2012 compared to 45% in 2011.

Digital Media

The following tables present the performance redoit our Digital Media segment (dollars in mill®rexcept where noted):

WWE.com $ 197 % 12.5

Total $ 34t % 28.1 23%

WWE.com $ 82 $ 5.4 52%

Total $ 102 $ 7.2 43 %

WWE.com revenues increased $7.2 million in 20§ Za@mpared to 2011, primarily driven by new prograng agreements with YouTu
and Hulu. Additionally, advertising revenue incre@é$1.5 million from 2011. WWE.com cost of revenireseased $3.1 million in 2012 due
increased expenses related to the production astdbdition of this new content. Additionally, salarelated expenses, included in sell
general and administrative expenses, increased Byrfiillion in 2012 as compared to 2011. As a 1tesMWE.com OIBDA as a percentage
revenues decreased slightly to 42% in 2012 from #82011.

WWEShop revenues decreased $0.8 million in22€mpared to 2011, as a 7% decrease in the nuoibeders processed was ofi
slightly by a 1% increase in average revenues pgero WWEShop cost of revenues decreased by $1llmin 2012, primarily due |
decreased costs of material as a result of prochixct This was partially offset by salary relatedperses, included in selling, general
administrative expenses, which increased by $0IBomiin 2012 as compared to 2011. As a result, WBN&p OIBDA as a percentage
revenues increased to 14% in 2012 from 12% in 2011.
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WWE Studios

The following table provides detailed informatiom our WWE Studios’ segment (in millions):

Feature
Film
Production For the Year Ended December 31,
Release  Production Ag?%tz-cngtlas Inception to-date Revenue OIBDA
Title Date Costs* 2012 ' Revenue  OIBDA 2012 2011 2012 2011
2012
Barricade Sept 2012 $ 4C $ 0.8 $ 08 $ (35 $ 0.8 SNA $ (13 $ (2.9
The Day Aug 2012 — — — — — N/A — N/A
No Holds Barred July 2012 — — 0.4 0.1 0.4 N/A 0.1 N/A
Bending the Rules Mar 2012 5.t 0.8 0.8 4.7 0.8 N/A (2.5 (3.2
9.t 1.€ 2.1 (8.1 2.1 — 2.7 (5.9)

2011
The Reunion Oct 2011 6.¢ 1.7 2.1 (4.7) (0.9 2.4 (0.5) (4.2)
Inside Out Sept 2011 5.1 3 1.€ (3.9 (0.5) 2.1 (0.€) (3.2)
That's What | Am April 2011 4.7 0.4 0.8 (5.0) — 0.¢ (0.7 (4.9
The Chaperone Mar 2011 5.8 0.7 4.2 (3.9 0.2 4.C 0.1 (3.9

22.F 4.1 8.8 (17.9) (0.€) 9.4 (2.9 (16.2)
Prior Releases 84.: 7.€ 85.4 (2.7) 6.4 11.5 1.2 (5.2
Completed but not released 7.S 7.8 — — — — — —
In production 2.C 2.C — — — — — —
In development 0.€ 0.€ — (4.7 — — (1.0 (0.8
Sub-total $ 126.6 % 236 $ 96 $ (312 $ 7€ $ 20 $ (36 $ (27.9
Selling, General &
Administrative
Expenses (1.9 (1.8
Total $ (55 § (2949

* Production costs are presented net of the agsaockenefit of production incentives.

Revenue recognition for our feature films variepataling on the method of distribution and the extércontrol the Company exercit
over the distribution and related expenses. Wecisesignificant control over our salfstributed films and as a result, we record distiior
revenue and related expenses on a gross basis finaocial statements. Thinparty distribution partners control the distributiand marketin
of our licensed films, and as a result, we recagn@&enue on a net basis after the tipiadty distributor recoups distribution fees andenge
and results have been reported to us. This typicaiturs in periods subsequent to the initial deaf the film.

At December 31, 2012, the Company had $23lBminet of accumulated amortization and impaintineharges) of feature film product
assets capitalized on our Consolidated BalancetSkée review and revise estimates of ultimate rereeand participation costs at e
reporting period to reflect the most current infatian available. If estimates for a filmultimate revenue are revised and indicate afgigni
decline in a films profitability or if events or circumstances charigat indicate we should assess whether the dievof a film is less than
unamortized film costs, we calculate the film'sirated fair value using a discounted cash flow rhotée updated ultimate rever
projections during the year ended December 31, 20dthg lower than expected home video revenueiwmrfeature flmBending the Rul
andBarricade. As a result of the decline in expected profitabibf these releases, we prepared a discountddflcag analysis to determine 1
fair value of the associated feature film produttassets. This resulted in impairment chargesesemting the excess of the recordec
carrying value over the estimated fair value, of2$dillion for the year ended December 31, 2012rifiu2011, we recorded impairm:
charges of $23.4 million, of which $19.4 millionated to self-distributed films and $4.0 relatedi¢ensed films
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During 2012, the Company entered into an agreerntenb-distribute the feature filnThe Day, domestically. This film was released vi
limited theatrical release in August and on DVDNovember 2012. The Company recognizes revenue ateeby this film in a mann
similar to how it recognizes revenue for its licetdilms; on a net basis, after distribution feed axpenses have been recouped and ex
and results have been reported to us. In 2012 tmepany did not record any revenue associatedthisirelease.

WWE Studios revenues decreased $13.0 millin2012 compared to 2011 as there was a $9.2 mitlesrease in revenue for our self
distributed films and a $3.8 million decrease imerue for our licensed films in 2012. The decreiasesvenue associated with our self
distributed films was attributable to the relatiperformance and timing of releases from our mowetfplio . The decrease in rever
associated with licensed films is primarily attiibble to the age of our film library, with the mastent film released in 2009. WWE Stuc
OIBDA increased $23.9 million in 2012 as compa@@®@11. The increase is primarily due to a $22 lAanireduction in impairment charges.

Unallocated Corporate Expenses

The following table presents the amounts and péteenge of certain significant unallocated corpmexpenses (dollars in millions):

increase
2012 2011 (decrease)
Staff related $ 472 % 45.5 4%
Management incentive compensation 10.4 4.3 142%
Legal, accounting and other professional 17.2 14.2 21%
Travel and entertainment expenses 4.2 3.€ 17%
Advertising, marketing and promotion 6.8 6.4 8%
Corporate insurance 3.9 3.t 11%
Bad debt expense (recovery) 2.5 (0.7) 457%
All other 245 23.4 4%
Total unallocated corporate expenses $ 116.7 % 100.z 16%

Unallocated corporate as a percentage of net r@genu 24% 21%

Unallocated corporate expenses increased ib62012 compared to 2011. Management incentive emsgtion, including bonus and st
compensation, increased $6.1 millitnreflect amounts expected to be paid based oCtimepany's operating performance. The 2011 re
reflect the expensing of previously issued stoakgensation and minimal incentive compensation asCtbmpany did not meet performa
targets in 2011. Staff related expenses in 2012ased primarily due to the hiring of staff to deemew programming to support our emer;
content and distribution efforts, including thel fuéar impact of employees hired in 2011. The $8illion increase in legal, accounting
other professional fees in 2012 is primarily duebo5 million in consulting costs related to oumn@&/WE Network. Unallocated corpor:
expenses includes $8.2 million in operating expgrassociated with our emerging content and digtdbuefforts including our new WW
Network during 2012 compared to $4.0 million th@pyear.

Depreciation and Amortization
(dollars in millions)

increase
2012 2011 (decrease)
Depreciation and amortization $ 20.C $ 15.C 33%

Depreciation expense for 2012 reflects higher priypend equipment balances due to purchases assibeigth the expansion of our cont
and distribution efforts.
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Investment Income, Interest and Other Expense, Net
(dollars in millions)

increase
2012 2011 (decrease)
Investment income, interest and other expense, net $ 05 $ (0.2 400(%

Investment income, interest and other expensefon@012 included the full year impact of amortieatof loan origination costs and fee
the unused portion of our revolving credit facilityhich was established in September 2011. Additlpn 2012 includes realized forei
exchange gains and losses, and certain non-inctatectaxes.

Income Taxes
(dollars in millions)

increase
2012 2011 (decrease)
Provision for income taxes $ 112 % 12.1 (N%

Effective tax rate 26% 33%

The 2012 and 2011 effective tax rate was positivielyacted by a $4.4 million and $0.6 million bemhefespectively, from recognition
previously unrecognized tax benefits. The 2012 fiepamarily relates to the settlement of varicaugdits, including the State of Connecti
the IRS, and other state and local jurisdictiortse 2011 benefit primarily relates to the statutdiroftations expiring in jurisdictions in whi
the Company had taken uncertain tax positions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We had cash and short-term investments of $1@@lion and $152.4 million as of December 3112@&nd 2012 , respectively. Our short
term investments consist primarily of corporate deand municipal bonds, including mefunded municipal bonds. Our debt balance to
$29.6 million as of December 31, 2013 his debt is related to the financing of our newlrchased corporate aircraft. We had no
outstanding at December 31, 2012.

The Company has announced plans to launch WWE Nkpao over-the-top (“OTT"subscription based platform for subscribers to ss
WWE content, including our marquis pay-per-view mge It is anticipated that our pay-pgew business will be impacted by the launc
WWE Network and that the Company will continue twdst in WWE Network, both in terms of operatingd arapital expenditures. T
Companys primary domestic television distribution dealsl ém September 2014. The Company is now engagédd paitential partners afi
exiting our exclusive negotiating period with NBCU.

Due to our expected continuing investment in WWHEwdek, we believe that our cash and shertm investments will decrease over the
twelve months, however we believe that cash praltieoperations and our existing cash and investimaances will be sufficient to meet
operating requirements over this period. Lonigem, results of WWE Network's launch and the ddiodslevision renewals could hav:
profound positive or negative effect on the Compariguidity and depending on the outcome of disimmsswith our current lenders it
require additional actions by the Company to obligundity.

Our uses of cash include dividend payments, spgnainfeature film production, projected capital emgitures, and additional operai
costs associated with our increased content prmgtueind distribution initiatives relating to WWE Nerk. We also anticipate spend
approximately $30.0 million on the purchase of mmy and equipment and other assets during thegreded December 31, 2014.

Borrowing Capacity

In April 2013, we amended and restated our exis$200.0 million revolving credit facility with a sdicated group of banks, w
JPMorgan Chase, as administrative agent. Undetethes of the amended agreement, (i) the maturityuoforiginal $200.0 million revolvir
credit facility was extended to September 9, 2(fischanges were made to the applicable margirbfarowings under the facility, and (
restrictions on certain financial covenants weresiaded to provide greater financial flexibility. errently have no amounts outstanc
under this credit facility. Under the terms of tieeolving credit facility, we are subject to centdinancial covenants and restrictions, inclut
limitations with respect to our indebtedness, ljemgrgers and acquisitions, dispositions of asset&stments, capital expenditures,
transactions with affiliates. In addition, the réang credit facility restricts our ability to pagtividends if a default or event of default
occurred and is continuing thereunder. In additmour revolving credit facility and the securedriofor our corporate aircraft financing,
Company will evaluate financing options that arsteffective and that add to the Company’s findrftaaibility.
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At December 31, 2013, the Company had availabl¢ ckgtacity under the revolving credit facility gfoximately $83.0 million and wi
believe that during the next twelve months we wilo have access to funds under the credit facifityeeded, however, this will require
amendment of certain covenants. While we believdemders would consent to this amendment, no aeses can be given in this regard.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities were $23.8lioril , $63.1 million and $63.2 million for the ysaended December 31, 201301z
and 2011, respectively. The 2013 cash flows from operatiotivities were impacted by lower operating perfante and changes in work
capital, including an $11.0 million increase in taenual payout of management incentive compensaétaied to the Comparg/’201.
performance, increases in spending on televisi@mdymtion assets, and timing differences in theectitbn of receivables that negativ
impacted the 2013 cash flow as compared to 2012.

During 2013, the Company spent $11.3 million ortdeafilm production activities, compared to $9.#lion in 2012. In 2013, we receiv
$0.9 million in incentives related to feature fipnoductions. In 2012, we received $1.9 million meentives related to feature film product
We anticipate spending between $20.0 million an@l@Ga&nillion on feature film production during thear ending December 31, 2014.

We recognized $10.3 million in ndiim related incentives in 2013 and $8.0 million time prior year period. During the year ent
December 31, 2014, we anticipate receiving appratety $8.0 million to $10.0 million in nofikm related incentives, including crec
associated with qualifying capital projects.

During 2013, the Company spent $11.5 million toduwe additional content for television includifigtal Divasand WWE Networ}t
compared to $6.1 milliom the prior year period. We anticipate spendingragimately $12.0 million to $17.0 million to prodel additionz
content during the year ending December 31, 2014.

Our accounts receivable represent a significantigporof our current assets and relate principatlyat limited number of custome
distributors and licensees that produce consumedygts containing our trademarks. At December 31,32 our largest single custon
balance was approximately 1386 our gross accounts receivable balance. Chamgdgeifinancial condition or operations of our dimitors
customers or licensees may result in increasede@lpayments or nopayments which would adversely impact our cash $lénom operatin
activities and/or our results of operations.

In early 2013, the Company and THQ reached an agreeto terminate its video game license, whicleagrent was approved by the (
Bankruptcy Court. In connection with this termiwoati the Company waived its rights to the psgition amounts due under its lice
agreement with THQ, and THQ agreed to transfemgemtellectual property rights to WWE.

In connection with the THQ license termination, ©empany recognized $8.0 million of revenue dutimg first quarter of 2013 related
the unrecognized portion of an advance receivedwitie Company entered into the license agreemeht™MAQ in 2009. As a result of TH(
bankruptcy, we did not collect or recognize a mortof anticipated royalties which approximated $&illion stemming from foregone vid
game receipts; this loss did not have a materiadime effect on our business, financial conditipnesults of operations.

Upon termination of the agreement with THQ, the @any entered into a five-year agreement with Take-to be the Company's vic
game licensee. TakBwo assumed distribution of our existing catalogviofeo games and will develop and publish fututlej including th
current year release of the Company's annual fisedame.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities were $50i8ion , $12.9 million and $30.7 million for theegrs ended December 31, 201212
and 2011, respectively. The increase in cash used in imgsictivities was primarily as a result of the Qmany's purchase of a corpol
aircraft, including related improvements, for appnaately $30.9 million .

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash flows used in financing activities were $6i0iom , $36.6 million and $49.8 million for the ges ended December 31, 2012012
and 2011, respectively. The Company paid dividerid36.0 million , $35.8 million and $47.8 millian 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In August 2013, we entered into a seven year sddoen with RBS Asset Finance, Inc. for $31.6 milliin order to finance the purchase
2007 Bombardier Global 5000 jet. The loan bearsrést at a rate of 2.18% per annum, is payableantily installments of50.4 millior
beginning in September 2013 and has a final matafifugust 7, 2020. This aircraft will replace the
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Company's current corporate aircraft after thert@finment of the purchased aircraft is completdte purchase price was $27.0 million
after certain improvements, the total price is expé to be approximately $32.0 million.

Contractual Obligations

W e have entered into various contracts under whielase required to make guaranteed payments, imgudi

e Scheduled principal and fixed interest paymentsudr secured loan in connection with our corpoaatcraft financing
e Various operating leases for facilities and saffises with terms generally ranging from one to years
e Service contracts with certain vendors and indepehdontractors, including our talent with termsgiag from one to twenty yea

e Service agreement obligation related to WWE Netwewxcluding future performance based payments whiehvariable in nature

Our aggregate minimum payment obligations undeselo®ntracts as of December 31, 2013 are as fo(ldolkars in millions):

After
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 Total
Long-term debt $ 4¢ $ 4¢ $ 4¢ $ 48 $ 48 $ 81 $ 324
Operating leases 3.¢ 2.7 2.4 1.€ 1.3 3.2 15.2
Service agreement obligation 7.€ — — — — — 7.€
Talent and other commitments 15.C 9.7 8.2 7.1 1.t 3.7 45.:
Total commitments $ 314 $ 17 $ 15€ $ 13t $ 7.6 $ 151 $ 100.f

Our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, R@lidles $2.4 million in liabilities associated Wwitincertain tax positions (includi
interest and penalties of approximately $0.6 milljowhich is not included in the table above. ThemPany does not expect to pay
settlements related to these uncertain tax posiiini2014.

Seasonality

Our operating results are not materially afdcby seasonal factors; however, our premier eWdnéstieMania, occurs late in our fir
quarter or early in our second quarter. In addjtimvenues from our licensing and direct sale afsomer products, including our catalc
magazines and internet sites, varies from periogetdod depending on the volume and extent of Soen agreements and marketing
promotion programs entered into during any pargicperiod of time, as well as the commercial suscéthe media exposure of our charac
and brand. The timing of revenues related to our EVStudios segment fluctuates based upon the tiofiogr feature film releases. The tim
of these events as well as the continued introdoaif new product offerings and revenue generatimtets can and will cause fluctuatior
quarterly revenues and earnings.

Inflation
During 2013, 2012 and 2011 , inflation did have a material effect on our business.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2013 , we did not have any riateff-balance sheet arrangements, as definetkin B03(a)(4) of SEC Regulation S
K.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires us to make estimates that affeatefh@ted amounts of assets, liabilit
revenue and expenses, and the related disclosuoemingent assets and contingent liabilities. Wsebour estimates on our histor
experience and on various other assumptions thatelieve are reasonable under the circumstancesetults of which form the basis
making estimates about the carrying values of asa@d liabilities. The accuracy of these estimatabthe likelihood of future changes def
on a range of possible outcomes and a number adrlyinly variables, many of which are beyond ourtoanActual results may differ fro
these estimates under different assumptions orittonst



We believe the following judgments and estimatescaitical in the preparation of our consolidatethhfcial statements.
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e Feature Film Production Assets, Ne

Feature film production assets are recorded atdisé of production, including production overhead @et of production incentives. 1
costs for an individual film are amortized in th®portion that revenues bear to managensesstimates of the ultimate revenue expected
recognized from exploitation, exhibition or salenddnortized feature film production assets are etatlifor impairment each reporting per
We review and revise estimates of ultimate reveme participation costs at each reporting periodeftect the most current informati
available. Reductions in ultimate revenue for mmfdnd/or any increases in estimated participat@siscassociated with a film could indica
significant decline in a film’s profitability. Whethere is a significant decline in a filsprofitability, we calculate the estimated faitugof ¢
film using a discounted cash flow model. If theirasted fair value of the film is less than its umatized costs, we record an impairn
charge for the excess of the carrying value of ftme over the estimated fair value. Impairment gjew are recorded as an increas
amortization expense included in cost of revenndké consolidated financial statements.

Our estimate of ultimate revenues for feature filmdudes revenues from all sources for ten yeans fthe date of a filng initial release
We estimate the ultimate revenues based on indasttyCompany specific trends, the historical penonce of similar films, the star powel
the lead actors, and the genre of the film. Poathe release of a feature film and throughoulifés we revise our estimates of revenues b
on expected future results, actual results andrdhewn factors affecting the various distributiorarkets. The most sensitive factor affec
our estimates of ultimate revenue for our featilresfis home video sales. Home video sales fluetli@ised on a variety of factors incluc
audience demand for our titles, the volume andityuaf competing home video products, marketing @nomotional strategies, as well
general economic conditions.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 , 20128hd , we recorded aggregate impairment charg&d b7 million , $1.2 million
and $23.4 million , respectively, related to selefaur feature films.

As of December 31, 2013 , we had $16.0 milljaet of accumulated amortization and impairmentrgbs) in capitalized film producti
costs, which includes 19 released films and 2 fitompleted but not yet released. No assurance eagiien that additional unfavora
changes to revenue and cost estimates will notrpadich, in turn, may result in additional impai&nt charges that might materially affect
results of operations and financial condition.

e Television Production Assets, Nt

Television production assets consist of severaagfic television series we have produced for digtidn, either on our new WWE Network
through other distribution platforms. Amounts capited include development costs, production coststproduction costs and rela
production or posproduction overhead. Costs to produce live eveognamming are expensed when the event is firstdwas. Unamortize
television production assets are evaluated for impnt each reporting period. If conditions inde&at potential impairment, and the estim
future cash flows are not sufficient to recover timamortized asset, the asset is written downitosédue. In addition, if we determine the
program will not likely air, we expense the remagmunamortized asset. During the year ended DeaeBihe2013, we expensé&y.0 millior
related to the amortization of television producti@ssets. During the years ended December 31, 20022011, we did not expense
television production assets.

e Pay-PerView Programming Revenue Recognitio

Revenues from our pay-peiew programming are recorded when the event eda@nd are based upon our initial estimate of theber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atipinary buy information received from our pay-éew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-peniew buys occurs within one year and subsequenistdgnts to the buys are recognized in the pergwd information is receive
Historically, adjustments made to our initial esites have not had a significant impact on our reggnalthough this may not be the case i
future. Our pay-per-view accounts receivable batamas $11.2 million and $10.9 million at DecembEr&)13 and 2012 , respectively.

e Home Video Returns Allowanc:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles aterded at the later of the date of delivery by distributor to retailers, or the date 1
these products are made widely available for spleetailers, net of an allowance for estimatedmetuThe allowance for estimated returr
based on historical information, current industentls and demand for our titles. A change in deniandny of our videos or a change in
home video market could impact the level of videtums. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, our haden returns allowance w&#.£
million and $6.3 million, respectively.
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e Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our accounts receivable represent a significartigroof our current assets and relate principaila timited number of distributors of our pay-
perview, television, home video and magazine prodacis to licensees that produce consumer productsioorg our intellectual proper
and/or trademarks. Adverse changes in general esgnconditions and/or contraction in global credifirkets could precipitate liquid
problems among our key distributors, increasingeoynosure to bad debts which could negatively impac results of operations and finan
condition. We estimate the collectability of ource&ables and establish allowances for the amo@imeaeivables that we estimate to
uncollectible. We base these allowances on oupfiést collection experience, the length of time oeceivables are outstanding and
financial condition of individual customers. Changa the financial condition of a single major @mer, either adverse or positive, cc
impact the amount and timing of any additional @wloces or reductions that may be required. At Déesr@l, 2013 our largest sing
customer balance was approximately 13% of our gagssunts receivable. As of December 31, 2013 &1 2our allowance for doubtf
accounts was $2.8 millioand $6.3 million, respectively. The relatively largllowance for doubtful accounts in the prior y@as due primaril
to reserves established for receivable balances &réormer home video licensee and our former vigiroe licensee.

e |ncome Taxe:

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognfpedhe expected future tax consequences of exkatshave been reflected in the consolid
financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities aagbets are determined based on the difference®éetthhe book and tax bases of partic
assets and liabilities and operating loss carryfods, using tax rates in effect for the years inctvithe differences are expected to revers
valuation allowance is provided to offset deferta® assets if, based upon the available evidemodyding consideration of tax plann
strategies, it is more-likely-than-not that somealbrof the deferred tax assets will not be realiz&s of December 31, 2013ur deferred te
assets were $19.2 million, less a valuation allaveaof $1.5 million. As of December 31, 2013 , oafedred tax liabilities were $8.1 million.

We use a twastep approach in recognizing and measuring unoeidai positions. The first step is to evaluatepasitions taken or expectec
be taken in a tax return by assessing whetheraheynore likely than not sustainable, based saleltheir technical merits, upon examinat
and including resolution of any related appealbtigiation process. The second step is to measwassociated tax benefit of each positio
the largest amount that we believe is more likblgnt not realizable. Differences between the amotitax benefits taken or expected tc
taken in our income tax returns and the amountwflenefits recognized in our financial statemeefgesent our unrecognized income
benefits, which we record as a liability. Our pylis to include interest and penalties related moecognized income tax benefits ¢
component of income tax expense. At December 313 206ur unrecognized tax benefits including inteaasd penalties totaled approxima
$2.4 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting StandardsiBo("FASB") issued an accounting standards updsgairing that unrecognized
benefits be presented as a reduction to a deftaredlsset for a net operating loss carryforwasiialar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforwarc
the extent such deferred tax assets are availalgleruhe tax law to offset additional taxes remgltirom disallowance of a tax position. T
standard update is effective for reporting peribeginning after December 15, 2013, with early adoppermitted. We adopted this accoun
standards update on July 1, 2013, which did no¢lzamaterial effect on our consolidated finandialesnents.

In February 2013, the FASB issued an accountingdstals update on the reporting of amounts reclaedsibut of accumulated ott
comprehensive income, to improve the transpareficgporting. These reclassifications present ttiece$ on the line items of net income
significant amounts reclassified out of accumulaidter comprehensive inconta# only if the item reclassified is required unde. GAAF
to be reclassified to net income in its entiretythe same reporting period. We adopted this acaoystandards update on January 1, .
which did not have a material effect on our cortstd financial statements.

In October 2012, the FASB issued an accountingdstals update to amend the requirements relatech tnpairment assessment
unamortized film costs and clarify when unamortiZédoh costs should be assessed for impairment. ipgate revises the impairm
assessment to remove the rebuttable presumptiorthiaonditions leading to the writdf of unamortized film costs after the balanced
date existed as of the balance sheet date. Thaeuplda eliminates the requirement that an emtitgiiporate into fair value measurements
in impairment tests the effects of any changestmmates resulting from the consideration of subset evidence, if the information would
have been considered by market participants atdmsurement date. This standard update is effeftivienpairment assessments perfor
on or after December 15, 2012. We adopted thiswatowy standards update for our film impairmenteassment as of December 31, 2
which did not have a material effect on our cordatfd financial statements.
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In December 2011, the FASB issued an accountinglatds update that expands the disclosure requitsrfar the offsetting of assets
liabilities related to certain financial instrumeragnd derivative instruments. Additional guidantzifying the scope of the update was is¢
by the FASB in January 2013. The update requirsslaures to present both gross information andm@tmation for financial instrumer
and derivative instruments that are eligible fot peesentation due to a right of offset, an enfabte master netting arrangement or sir
agreement. This standard update is effective foffiscal year beginning on January 1, 2013. We &stbfhis accounting standards update .
January 1, 2013, which did not have a materiakéfi@ our consolidated financial statements.

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Hart Provisions of the Private Securities LitigatioReform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9provides a “safe harbor” for certain statemehtt aare forwardeoking and are ni
based on historical facts. When used in this FobrK 1the words “may,” “will,” “could,” “anticipat€, “plan,” “continue,” “project,” “intend”,
“estimate”, “believe”, “expect” and similar exprésss are intended to identify forward-looking statmts, although not all forwaldeking
statements contain such words. These statemeats telour future plans, objectives, expectationsiatentions and are not historical facts
accordingly involve known and unknown risks andentainties and other factors that may cause theabotsults or the performance by u
be materially different from future results or merhance expressed or implied by such forwlaaking statements. The following factc
among others, could cause actual results to diffgterially from those contained in forward-lookisgatements made in this Form KO- in
press releases and in oral statements made byuthor&ed officers: (i) risks relating to enteringaintaining and reviewing major distribut
agreements, including our domestic television pogning agreements which terminate in September;J@)1L4isks relating to the launch a
maintenance of our digital WWE Network; (iii) ouailure to continue to develop creative and enteirtgi programs and events would lik
lead to a decline in the popularity of our brandenfertainment; (iv) our failure to retain or conte to recruit key performers could lead
decline in the appeal of our storylines and theubarity of our brand of entertainment; (v) the upegted loss of the services of Vincen
McMahon could adversely affect our ability to ceepbpular characters and creative storylines agratise adversely affect our operations;
a decline in the popularity of our brand of spatgertainment, including as a result of changethésocial and political climate, co
adversely affect our business; (vii) changes inrégrilatory atmosphere and related private secitiatives could adversely affect our busin
(viii) the markets in which we operate are highbmpetitive, rapidly changing and increasingly fragred, and we may not be able to com
effectively, especially against competitors witleater financial resources or marketplace presgngeywe face uncertainties associated 1
international markets; (x) we may be prohibitedrirpromoting and conducting our live events andtbepbusinesses if we do not comply \
applicable regulations; (xi) because we depend uporintellectual property rights, our inability pvotect those rights, or our infringemen
others’intellectual property rights, could adversely affear business; (xii) we could incur substantiabllity in the event of accidents
injuries occurring during our physically demandiengents; (xiii) our live events expose us to ris&kting to large public events as wel
travel to and from such events; (xiv) we continagdce risks inherent in our feature film busingss) in addition to the launch of WW
Network, we could face a variety of risks if we argd into new or complementary businesses and/oerataitegic investments; (xvi) ris
related to our computer systems and online opesiti(xvii) decline in general economic conditiomsl alisruption in financial markets co
adversely affect our business; (xviii) our accourgseivable represent a significant portion of ourrent assets and relate principally
limited number of distributors and licensees, iasirg our exposure to bad debts and potentiallyadtipg our results of operations;(xix)
ability to access our revolving credit facility mbg limited due to certain financial covenants eggtrictions; (xx) we could incur substan
liabilities if litigation is resolved unfavorablyxxi) our failure to meet market expectations for éinancial performance could adversely ai
the market price and volatility of our stock; (3xihrough his beneficial ownership of a substantiajority of our Class B common stock,
controlling stockholder, Vincent K. McMahon, careesise control over our affairs, and his interesés/ conflict with the holders of our Cl:
A common stock; (xxiii) a substantial number of idsaare eligible for sale by Mr. McMahon and mershgdrhis family or trusts established
their benefit, and the sale, or the perceptionasisible sales, of those shares could lower oukgidce; and (xxiv) risks related to the relativ
small public “float”of our Class A common stock. In addition, our dénd is dependent on a number of factors, includingpng other thing
our liquidity and historical and projected cashwi]cstrategic plan (including alternative uses opitd), our financial results and conditi
contractual and legal restrictions on the paymémtivadends (including under our revolving credicflity), general economic and competi
conditions and such other factors as our Boardigédibrs may consider relevant. The forwéwdking statements speak only as of the da
this Form 10-K and undue reliance should not begquaon these statements. We undertake no obligadiapdate or revise any forward-
looking statements.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure®aut Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposéarémn currency exchange rate, interest rateeaquity price risks that could impact
results of operations. Our foreign currency exclearade risk is minimized by maintaining minimal @ssets and liabilities in currencies o
than our functional currency.

Investment:

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of mcipal bonds, including preefunded municipal bonds and corporate bonds. W
exposed to market risk related to our investmentf@@ primarily as a result of credit quality kind interest rate risk. Credit quality risl
defined as the risk of a credit downgrade to ainviddal fixed maturity security and the potentiak$ attributable to that downgrade. Ci
quality risk is managed through our investment ggliwhich establishes credit quality limitations time overall portfolio as well
diversification and percentage limits on securitiésndividual issuers. The result is a diversifigartfolio of fixed maturity securities, witt
weighted average credit rating of approximately "AA

Interest rate risk is defined as the potentialdoonomic losses on fixed maturity securities dua thange in market interest rates.
investments in municipal bonds and corporate bdrad®e exposure to changes in the level of marketast rates. Interest rate risk is mitig;
by managing our investment portfolsotollar weighted duration. Additionally, we habe ttapability of holding any security to maturiyhich
would allow us to realize full par value. We havaleated the impact of an immediate 100 basis m#iahge in interest rates on our investr
portfolio. A 100 basis point increase in interesties would result in an approximate $1.2 milliorcrdase in fair value, whereas a 100 t
point decrease in interest rates would result ingeroximate $1.2 million increase in fair value.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D

The information required by this item is set faritthe Consolidated Financial Statements filed il report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourtsanon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Disclosure Controls and Procedur

We have performed an evaluation under the supervishd with the participation of our managemerntluding our Chairman and Ch
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officef,the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures, as defined under the Secu
Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluation,Ghairman and Chief Executive Officer, and our €Ri@ancial Officer concluded that
of the end of the period covered by this FormKlOsur disclosure controls and procedures werectffe and designed to ensure tha
material information required to be disclosed by @ompany in reports that it files or submits untther Exchange Act is recorded, proces
summarized and reported within the time period<ifipe by the SEC and that such information is awolated and communicated to
management, as appropriate to allow timely decssiegarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in the Company’s internarabover financial reporting identified in conniest with managemers’evaluation thi
occurred during the fourth quarter of our fiscahlyended December 31, 2013 that has materiallgtafie or is reasonably likely to materi
affect, our internal control over financial repodi

Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Redag

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 158(f). Under the supervision and with the partitigpa of our management, including our Chairman
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial o#fr, we conducted an evaluation of the effectigsne
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of our internal control over financial reporting asDecember 31, 2013 based on the guidelines lestat inInternal Control —Integratec
Framework(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgdiuns of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). Ourrivgtecontrol ove
financial reporting includes policies and procedutieat provide reasonable assurance regardingettability of financial reporting and tl
preparation of financial statements for externpbréng purposes in accordance with U.S. generalbepted accounting principles.

Based on the results of our evaluation, our managérooncluded that our internal control over finahceporting was effective as
December 31, 2013. We review the results of managémassessment with our Audit Committee.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2013 has beditealiby Deloitte & Touche LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm, tased in their report which is included in this Arah Report on Form 18- Such repo
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectigerd the Company’s internal control over financgdorting as of December 31, 2013.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the internal control over finanoggdorting of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inaidasubsidiaries (the "Company") a:
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishéaténnal Control — Integrated Framewo(f992) issued by the Committee of Sponsc
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camigamanagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissrad internal control over financial reportingelided in the accompanyifganagemeng
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti.. Our responsibility is to express an opinion oe tbompany's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight iofUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigffeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg@feness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedigase considered necessary in the circumstancesbéhNeve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemvigi the company's principal execu
and principal financial officers, or persons pemiorg similar functions, and effected by the compsiioard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuranegdieg the reliability of financial reporting antdet preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally medeaccounting principles. A company's internaitoa over financial reporting includ
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéaraintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypi@jide reasonable assurance that transactione@reded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengi@dcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are t
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngenzent and directors of the company; and (3) peov@&hsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijon, use, or disposition of the company's asseat could have a material effect on
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoihover financial reporting, including the postp of collusion or improper managem:
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of ¢
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltominover financial reporting to future periods abject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the polideprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fic&l reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Framewo(#992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitns o
the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BogUnited States), fl
consolidated financial statements and financiaiestent schedule as of and for the year ended Desmregih 2013 of the Company and
report dated February 24, 2014 expressed an ufigdadipinion on those financial statements andrfoia statement schedule.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 24, 2014
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART Il

The information required by Part 11l (Items 1@) is incorporated herein by reference to ourrdiiéfie proxy statement for our 2014 Ann
Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(a) The following documents are filed as a parthif report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Sche8eleindex to Consolidated Financial Statementsage -1 of this report.
2. Exhibits:
Exhibit

No. Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatincofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Riegtion Statement ¢
3.1 Form S-1 (No. 333-84327)).

Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate adriporation (incorporated by reference to Exhihit(d) to our
3.1A Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed July2(§)2).

Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by eefss to Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration StatemenEorm S-1 (No.
3.2 333-84327)).

Amendment to Amended and RestatedlByvs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2¢aptr Registration Statement
3.2A Form S-8, filed July 15, 2002).

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 2007 Omnibusdntive Plan, effective July 20, 2007 (incorpordtgdeference to
10.1* Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdiléuly 26, 2007).

Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Units m@ompany’s employees and officers under the Cogip@007
10.2* Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencéxhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-édiJuly 26, 2007).

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units to @@mmpany’s employees and officers under the Conp&t07
10.3* Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencéxhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-édiJuly 26, 2007).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with&fihk. McMahon, effective as of January 1, 201tdmporated by
10.4* reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Reporfonm 8-K filed November 15, 2010).
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

World Wrestling Entertainment 2012 Employee StodkcRase Plan (incorporated by reference to AppeAdix our Proxy
10.5* Statement dated March 16, 2012)

Amended and Restated Booking Agreement with Pauksgue, effective as of January 1, 2012 (incorpdraty referenc
10.6* to Exhibit 10.6 to our Annual Report on Form 1044 the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011).

Form of offer letters between the Company and exezwfficers (incorporated by reference to Exhibt7 to our Annug
10.7* Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Deoen31, 2011).

Booking Agreement, dated October 7, 2013, betwdéenGompany and Stephanie McMahon Levesque (incatgubrby
10.8* reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company's Quigrieeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sep&r80, 2013).

Employment Agreement between the Company and Midhasi dated July 19, 2013 (incorporated by refiee to Exhibi
10.9* 10.10 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Forn@10r the quarter ended June 30, 2013).

10.10 Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Facility dakeril 30, 2013, and related exhibits and schesl(ilecorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Quarterly Reporform 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013).

10.11 Loan and Aircraft Security Agreement, dated Augys2013 and related exhibits and schedules (incated by reference
Exhibit 10.15 to the Company's Current Report om#8-K, filed August 12, 2013).

10.12 Promissory Note, dated August 7, 2013 (incorpordttedeference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company'sréntr Report ol
Form 8-K, filed August 12, 2013).

N

1.1 List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith).

N

3.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filedréeith).

w

1.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon purstido Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002d¢fherewith).

31.2 Certification by George A. Barrios pursu@anSection 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 iherewith).
321 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon and George AarBios pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbadesy Act of 200z

(filed herewith).

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation kbblase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Lin&kse Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba3ecument
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101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @larrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theretyp authorized.

W ORLD W RESTLING E NTERTAINMENT, | NC.
(Registrant)
Dated: February 24, 2014 By: /S/VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon

Chairman of the Board of Directors and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptie following persons on behalf
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title or Capacity Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer

/s/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON (principal executive officer)
Vincent K. McMahon February 24, 2014
/sl STUART U. GOLDFARB Director February 24, 2014

Stuart U. Goldfarb

/sl PATRICIA A. GOTTESMAN Director February 24, 2014

Patricia A. Gottesman

/s/ DAVID KENIN Director February 24, 2014
David Kenin
/s/ JOSEPH H. PERKINS Director February 24, 2014

Joseph H. Perkins

/sl FRANK A. RIDDICK I Director February 24, 2014
Frank A. Riddick IlI

/sl JEFFREY R. SPEED Director February 24, 2014
Jeffrey R. Speed

/s/ KEVIN DUNN Director February 24, 2014
Kevin Dunn
/s/ BASIL V. DEVITO Jr. Director February 24, 2014

Basil V. DeVito Jr.

/sl GEORGE A. BARRIOS Chief Strategy and Financial Officer Febyu24, 2014
George A. Barrios (principal financial and accounting officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Ind aubsidiaries (the "Company")
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the relatedbtidated statements of income, comprehensive in¢stoekholders' equity, and cash flc
for each of the three years in the period endece®éer 31, 2013. Our audits also included the firzdustatement schedule listed in the Inde
Item 15. These financial statements and finantc&Eement schedule are the responsibility of the @amg's management. Our responsibilit
to express an opinion on the financial statememdsfimancial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidngcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disas in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteepresent fairly, in all material respects, thearicial position of World Wrestlir
Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecerBltge2013 and 2012, and the results of their ojmeratand their cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20c®nformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of Amel
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement shile, when considered in relation to the basic clidated financial statements taken
whole, present fairly, in all material respect® thformation set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Biogwnited States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2013, based on the criteria establishéutérnal Control -Integrated Framewoil
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgditins of the Treadway Commission and our repatedi February 24, 2014 expresse
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohdwer financial reporting.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 24, 2014
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Selling, general and administrative expenses 154,58 136,34: 116,73¢

Operating income 5,891 43,19¢ 37,01¢

Investment income, net 1,42¢ 2,19( 2,05¢

Other expense, net (96¢) (997) (1,569

Net income $ 2,76¢ $ 31,43. $ 24,83:

Earnings per share:

Basic 74,93¢ 74,59¢ 74,21

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Other comprehensive (loss) income :

Unrealized holding gain/(loss) - available-fate securities (net of tax (benefit)/expens
$(232), $450 and $152, respectively) (379 734 24¢

Total other comprehensive (loss) income (519 76¢ 11¢




See accompanying notes to consolidated financgstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

As of December 31,
2013 2012

CURRENT ASSETS:

Short-term investments, net 76,47¢ 86,32¢

Inventory 2,87¢ 1,77(

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 16,14 15,26¢

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 133,48( 102,16:

TELEVISION PRODUCTION ASSETS, NET 10,77: 6,331

OTHER ASSETS 9,69¢ 9,44

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

©~

Current portion of long-term debt 4251 % —

Deferred income 30,117 28,61:

LONG-TERM DEBT 25,38¢ —

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Class A common stock: ($.01 par value; 180,0004)G0es authorized;

December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) 313 293

43,797,830 and 45,500,830 shares issued and oditsfoas

Additional paid-in capital 346,97 341,76:

Accumulated deficit (85,289 (51,81%)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 378,46. $ 381,38

See accompanying notes to consolidated financstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other
Class A Class B Paid - in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Total

Net income — — — — — — 24,83. 24,83.

Stock issuances (repurchases),
net 42C 5 — — (889) — — (884)

Tax effect from stock-based
payment arrangements — — — — (730 — — (730

Stock-based compensation — — — — 2,86¢ — — 2,86¢

Net income — — — — — — 31,43 31,43.

Stock issuances (repurchases),
net 33¢ 3 — — (139 — — (130

Tax effect from stock-based
payment arrangements — — — — (58¢) — — (58¢)

Stock-based compensation — — — — 3,91¢ — — 3,91t

Net income — — — — 2,76¢ 2,76¢

Stock issuances (repurchases),
net 34€ 3 — — (795) — — (792)

Excess tax benefits from
stock-based payment
arrangements — — — — 228 — — 22¢

Stock-based compensation — — — — 5,52¢ — — 5,562¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)



For the years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Net income $ 2,76  $ 31,43 $ 24,83:

activities:

Amortization of television production assets 7,012 — —

Amortization of bond premium 1,992 2,27( 2,58(

Stock-based compensation 5,52¢ 3,84¢ 2,86¢

Services provided in exchange for equity instrurment (879 (439 —

Provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes 1,422 6,18% (6,429

Cash (used in)/provided by changes in operatingtassd liabilities:

Inventory (1,109 (112) 42¢

Feature film production assets (9,12¢) (8,90%) (7,099

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (6,66¢) 2,507 (3,692

Net cash provided by operating activities 23,75: 63,05 63,18¢

Purchase of corporate aircraft and related impr@rem (30,899 — —

Purchases of short-term investments (37,07) (19,17 (47,909

Purchase of cost method investments (2,200 (5,000 —

Net cash used in investing activities (50,849 (12,87¢) (30,71

Proceeds from the issuance of note payable 31,03: — —

Dividends paid (35,979 (35,819 (47,809

Issuance of stock, net 704 811 89:

Net cash used in financing activities (6,04¢) (36,619 (49,80¢)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 66,04¢ 52,49: 69,82

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest $ 984 % 81t $ 41C

Non-cash purchase of property and equipment $ 1,70C $ 1,418 $ 5,30z

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsients.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigrciside the accounts of WWE. “WWHefers to World Wrestling Entertainment, |
and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwgspiires. References to “we,” “us,” “our” and th€dmpany” refer to WWE and i
subsidiaries. We are an integrated media and aittarent company, principally engaged in the develapt, production and marketing
television, pay-pewiew event programming, live events, feature fildisensing of various WWE themed products and tde sf consumt
products featuring our brands. Our operations egardzed around four principal activities:

Live and Televised Entertainment

« Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ lavents, sales of merchandise at these live evetasision rights fees, integra
sponsorships fees, and fees for viewing our payvj@w and video-on-demand programming.

Consumer Products

* Revenues consist principally of sales of WWEdpuied content via home entertainment (DVD/Bdy), magazine publishing a
royalties or license fees related to various WWéirtad products such as video games, toys and apparel

Digital Media

* Revenues consist principally of advertising saleor websites, rights fees received for digitatteat, sale of merchandise on
website through our WWEShop internet storefront salds of various broadband and mobile content.

WWE Studios

* Revenues consist of amounts earned from the disiibb of filmed entertainmen

Within the Consolidated Statements of Cash Floesfoperating activities, certain prior year amountse reclassified to conform to the
current period presentation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhie@ United Statt
of America requires our management to make estsratd assumptions that affect the reported amatirgissets and liabilities and disclosi
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datéheffinancial statements and the reported amafntsvenue and expenses during the repc
period. Actual results could differ from those psites.

Basis of Consolidatio— The consolidated financial statements include ttewants of WWE and all of its domestic and foreggibsidiaries
All intercompany accounts and transactions have kéminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depositernight deposit accounts and investments inay
market accounts with maturities of three monthkess at the time of purchase.

Investment Securities, Net We classify all of our investments as availaldedale securities. Such investments consist primani
municipal bonds, including preefunded municipal bonds, and corporate bondsofthese investments are stated at fair value, wittealize:
gains and losses on such securities reflectedyfriak, as other comprehensive income (loss) inkétolders’equity. Realized gains and los
on investments are included in earnings and aiigetkusing the specific identification method fatekmining the cost of securities sold.

Accounts Receivable, Net Accounts receivable relate principally to amouhig to us from pay-pesiew providers and television netwo
for pay-perview presentations and television programming, eéepely, and balances due from the sale of hordeosd and magazines. '
estimate the collectability of our receivables asthblish allowances for the amount of accountsivable that we estimate to be uncollect
We base these allowances on our historical cotleatixperience, the length of time our accountsivabée are outstanding and the finan
condition of individual customers. An individualldace is charged
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

to the allowance when all collection efforts haweib exhausted and it is deemed likely to be unddile, taking into consideration 1
financial condition of the customer and other fasto

Inventory— Inventory consists of merchandise sold on oursitebmerchandise sold at live events and DVDsHits, which are sold vie
distributor to retailers. Substantially all of daventory is comprised of finished goods. Inventmrgtated at the lower of cost (first-in, fikstH
basis) or market. The valuation of our inventoreguires management to make market estimates agp#ss quantities and the prices at wl
we believe the inventory can be sold.

Property and Equipment, Ne— Property and equipment are stated at historical nes of benefits associated with tax incentivess
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Deptieciand amortization is computed on a straigte-basis over the estimated useful live
the assets or, when applicable, the life of thedeahichever is shorter. Vehicles and equipmentapreciated based on estimated useful
varying from three to five years. Buildings andatetl improvements are depreciated based on estimagdul lives varying from five to thirty-
nine years. Our corporate aircraft is depreciatest ten years on a straiglite basis less an estimated residual value. Ir'82@& purchased
new corporate aircraft which we refurbished anagdainto service in February 2014. It is being defated in the same manner as our pre'
corporate aircraft.

Feature Film Production Assets, M Feature film production assets are recorded atdeof production, including production overhead

net of production incentives. The costs for anvitlial film are amortized in the proportion thateaues bear to managemerg'stimates of tl

ultimate revenue expected to be recognized frontoéagtion, exhibition or sale. Unamortized featditen production assets are evaluated

impairment each reporting period. We review andseeestimates of ultimate revenue and participatiosts at each reporting period to rei

the most current information available. If estinsafer a film's ultimate revenue are revised andidate a significant decline in a fil®’
profitability or if events or circumstances charniyat indicate we should assess whether the fairevaf a film is less than its unamortized 1

costs, we calculate the film's estimated fair valamg a discounted cash flows model. If fair vakikess than the unamortized cost, the fil

written down. Impairment charges are recorded amemease in amortization expense included in obsevenues in the consolidated incc

statements.

Our estimate of ultimate revenues for feature filmgdudes revenues from all sources for ten yeams fthe date of a filng initial release. W\
estimate the ultimate revenues based on industhyCampany specific trends, the historical perforogaaf similar films, the star power of -
lead actors, and the genre of the film. Prior ® rtblease of a feature film and throughout its hife revise our estimates of revenues basi
expected future results, actual results and othewk factors affecting the various distribution kets. The most sensitive factor affecting
estimates of ultimate revenue for our feature fiim$ome video sales. Home video sales fluctuaseda@n a variety of factors, includ
audience demand for our titles, the volume andityuaf competing home video products, marketing andmotional strategies, as well
general economic conditions.

Television Production Assets, NetTelevision production assets consist of severaafi¢ television series we have produced for distion
either on our recently announced WWE Network oodigh other distribution platforms. Amounts capitall include development co:
production costs, post-production costs and relg@ediuction or posproduction overhead. Costs to produce live evenggamming ar
expensed when the event is first broadcast. Unaedrtelevision production assets are evaluatednfigairment each reporting period
conditions indicate a potential impairment, and ésémated future cash flows are not sufficientgcover the unamortized asset, the as:
written down to fair value. In addition, if we det@ne that a program will not likely air, we willnte-off the remaining unamortized asset.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying amountasfd-lived assets when events and circumstanceamarr
such a review.

Income Taxe— Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recoghipe the expected future tax consequerafesvents that have been reflecte
the consolidated financial statements. Amountdatermined based on the differences between thie diod tax bases of particular assets
liabilities and operating loss carry forwards, gstax rates in effect for the years in which thiedlences are expected to reverse. A valu
allowance is provided to offset deferred tax as$ebmsed upon the available






WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

evidence, including consideration of tax plannitgategies, it is more-likely-thanet that some or all of the deferred tax assets val be
realized.

We use a twestep approach to recognizing and measuring unogeaipositions. The first step is to evaluatefasitions taken or expect
to be taken in a tax return by assessing whethey #re more likely than not sustainable, basedlysae their technical merits, up
examination, and including resolution of any refatgpeals or litigation process. The second stép measure the associated tax bene
each position, as the largest amount that we beliewnore likely than not realizable. Differencedvieen the amount of tax benefits take
expected to be taken in our income tax returnsthedmount of tax benefits recognized in our finalngtatements represent our unrecogr
income tax benefits, which we record as a liahilyr policy is to include interest and penaltielsted to unrecognized income tax benefi
a component of income tax expense.

Revenue Recogniti— Revenues are generally recognized when productshipped or as services are performed. Howeverfaltiee natur
of several of our business lines, there are adtitisteps in the revenue recognition process, sitted below.

e Pay-perview programming

Revenues from our pay-peiew programming are recorded when the event isdaémd are based upon our initial estimate of tiraber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based a@lipinary buy information received from our pay-éew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-periew buys generally occurs within one year and anpsequent adjustments to the buys are recognirdatei period ne
information is received.

*  Sponsorship

Through our sponsorship packages, we offeeriders a full range of our promotional vehicliesJuding online and print advertising, on-
air announcements and special appearances by quarstars. We allocate revenue to all deliverablestained within a sponsorsl
arrangement based upon their relative selling pricemost instances, we determine relative selfinige used for allocating revenue t
specific deliverable using vendor specific objeetevidence ("VSOE"). VSOE is the selling price thatendor charges when it sells sinr
products or services on a stamdne basis. After allocating revenue to each dedible, we recognize revenue from our sponsc
arrangements when each element is delivered.

e Licensing

Revenues from our licensed products are recogniped receipt of reports from the individual liceesahat detail the royalties generate:
related product sales. If we receive licensing ades, such payments are recorded as deferred eamlare recognized as income v
earned.

 Home entertainmer

Revenues from the sales of home video titles arerded net of an allowance for estimated returnthealater of delivery by our distributor
retailers, or the date that these products are wadkdy available for sale by retailers. The allowa for estimated returns is based on histc
information, current industry trends and demandfartitles.

e Magazine publishiny

Publishing newsstand revenues are recordech e magazine is shipped, net of an allowanceeftimated returns. We estimate
allowance for newsstand returns based upon ouewesf historical return rates and the expectedgperénce of our current titles in relatior
prior issue return rates.

* TVrights:

Rights fees received from distributors of tlevision programming, both domestically and in&ionally, are recorded when the prog
has been delivered to the distributor and is aklsl&or exhibition. Our typical distribution agreent is between one and five years in le
and frequently provides for contractual increasesr @s term. Expenses incurred in the productibow weekly television programming i
expensed when the programming is first availabtefdibition.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)
* Films:

Revenue recognition for our feature films gardepending on the method of distribution andetktent of control the Company exerci
over the distribution and related expenses. Wecgsesignificant control over our salfstributed films and as a result, we record disttior
revenue and related expenses on a gross basis fimaocial statements. Thirparty distribution partners control the distributiand marketin
of our licensed films, and as a result, we recagn@&enue on a net basis after the tipiadty distributor recoups distribution fees andenge
and results have been reported to us. This tygicaturs in periods subsequent to the initial ideaf the film. Revenues generated from
films through the various distribution channelscliing home video, video-otlemand and television are recognized consisterit thi
policies described above.

Film and Television Production Incentiv— The Company has access to various governmentatgmsgthat are designed to promote film
television production within the United States arettain international jurisdictions. Tax creditsrread with respect to expenditures
qualifying film, television and other productiontizdies, including qualifying capital projects,eamncluded as an offset to the related asset
an offset to production expenses when we have nelk$® assurance regarding the realizable amouhedbx credits.

Advertising Expens— Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, eXoegists related to the development of a majorroencial or medi
campaign which are expensed in the period in whiehcommercial or campaign is first presented. tReryears ended December 31, 2013
2012 and 2011, we recorded advertising expens$3,819 , $3,934 and $4,014 , respectively.

Foreign Currency Translatio— For the translation of the financial statement®wf foreign subsidiaries whose functional curresi@ee nc
U.S. Dollars, assets and liabilities are translatethe yeaend exchange rate, and income statement accountsaaslated at monthly aver:
exchange rates for the year. The resulting trapslatdjustments are recorded in accumulated otbmpeehensive income, a componer
stockholders’equity and also in comprehensive income. Foreigmeogy transactions are recorded at the exchangepravailing at th
transaction date, with any gains/losses recordethier income/expense.

Stock-Based Compensatien Equity awards are granted to directors, offiaard employees of the Company.

Stockbased compensation costs associated with ouratestistock units ("RSUs") are determined usingféiremarket value of the Compan
common stock on the date of the grant. These @rstsecognized over the requisite service periodguthe graded vesting method, ne
estimated forfeitures. RSUs typically have a threar service requirement and vest in equal anmgtdliments.

Stockbased compensation costs associated with our peafare stock units ("PSUs") are initially determinesihg the fair market value of 1
Company's common stock on the date the awardsppreved by our Compensation Committee (servicepitioe date). The vesting of the
PSUs are subject to certain performance conditmtsa service requirement of three and one halfsy&til such time as the performa
conditions are met, stock compensation costs asocwith these PSUs aremeasured each reporting period based upon thentaiket valu
of the Company's common stock and the probabilitattainment on the reporting date. The ultimatenber of PSUs that are issued tc
employee is the result of the actual performancth@fCompany at the end of the performance peodpared to the performance conditic
Stock compensation costs for our PSUs are recogihieet of estimated forfeitures, over the requisitevice period using the graded ves
method.

We estimate forfeitures, based on historical tremdi®n recognizing compensation expense and aiti@ststimate of forfeitures when they
expected to differ or as forfeitures occur.

Earnings Per Share (EP+— Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net income iy Wweighted average common shares outstandinggdtiné
period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing netame by the weighted average common shares odistpduring the period, plus diluti
potential common shares which is calculated udiregtteasury-stock method. Under the treastiogk method, potential common shares
excluded from the computation of EPS in periodwlmch they have an anti-dilutive effect.



F-11




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

Net income per share of Class A and Class B constark is computed in accordance with a-class method of earnings allocation. As s
any undistributed earnings for each period arecatied to each class of common stock based on tpoptionate share of cash dividends
each class is entitled to receive. The Companyndiccompute earnings per share using the two otetsod for the years end&gcember 3:
2013, 2012 and 201,1as there were no undistributed earnings duriegptiriods. Also, during 2013 and 2012, the dividepaid per share
Class A and Class B common stock were the same.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsamo("FASB") issued an accounting standards updageiring that unrecognized 1
benefits be presented as a reduction to a deftaredlsset for a net operating loss carryforwasiialar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforwarc
the extent such deferred tax assets are availaioleruhe tax law to offset additional taxes resgltirom disallowance of a tax position. T
standard update is effective for reporting peribeginning after December 15, 2013, with early adoppermitted. We adopted this accoun
standards update on July 1, 2013, which did no¢ lzamaterial effect on our consolidated finandialesnents.

In February 2013, FASB issued an accounting stalsdapdate on the reporting of amounts reclassifigdf accumulated other comprehen
income, to improve the transparency of reportingese reclassifications present the effects onitteeitems of net income of significi
amounts reclassified out of accumulated other cehlmmsive incomdsut only if the item reclassified is required und&iS. GAAP to b
reclassified to net income in its entirety in tlaam® reporting period. We adopted this accountiagdsrds update on January 1, 2013, w
did not have a material effect on our consoliddiegicial statements.

In October 2012, the FASB issued an accountingdstals update to amend the requirements relatech tmpairment assessment
unamortized film costs and clarify when unamortiZédoh costs should be assessed for impairment. ipgate revises the impairm
assessment to remove the rebuttable presumptiorthiaonditions leading to the writdf of unamortized film costs after the balanced
date existed as of the balance sheet date. Thaeuplda eliminates the requirement that an emitgiiporate into fair value measurements
in impairment tests the effects of any changestmmates resulting from the consideration of subset evidence, if the information would
have been considered by market participants atsurement date. This standard update is effeftivienpairment assessments perfor
on or after December 15, 2012. We adopted thiswatdow standards update for our film impairmenteassment as of December 31, 2!
which did not have a material effect on our cordattd financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued an accountinglatas update that expands the disclosure requitsmar the offsetting of assets
liabilities related to certain financial instrumergnd derivative instruments. Additional guidantzifying the scope of the update was is:
by the FASB in January 2013. The update requirssl@sures to present both gross information andnfietmation for financial instrumer
and derivative instruments that are eligible fot peesentation due to a right of offset, an enfabte master netting arrangement or sir
agreement. This standard update is effective foffiecal year beginning on January 1, 2013. We sstbthis accounting standards update .
January 1, 2013, which did not have a materiakéfi@ our consolidated financial statements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except share data)
3. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and diluitadhings per share, we used the following weiglaieetage common shares outstandini
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Basic 74,93¢ 74,59t 74,21:
Diluted 75,37¢ 74,98 74,85¢
Dilutive effect of restricted and performance stockts 43¢ 37¢ 637
Dilutive effect of employee share purchase plan 2 7 9
Anti-dilutive outstanding options (excluded fromryghare calculations) — 2 72
Anti-dilutive outstanding restricted and performarstock units (excluded from per-share

calculations) 39t — —

4. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investments

Investment Securitie

On June 25, 2012, the Company invested $5i00out Industries, Inc. ("Tout") Series B Preferr&tock. Additionally, the Investment
Tout includes shares received in conjunction witktrategic partnership of $879 and $220 relatetthe¢oyears ended December 31, 2@h8
2012 , respectively. On May 30, 2013, the Comparmgenan investment of $2,200 a live event touring business. Both investmeart
accounted for under the cost method. We evaluateaat method investments for impairment if factiodicate that a significant decreas
value has occurred. No such indicators were notaihgl the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20f@®estment Securities in ¢
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&813012 are comprised of $8,299 and $5,220 eotisply, related to these investments

Short-Term Investments:

Short-term investments measured at fair value stetsiof the following:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Gain (Loss) Value Cost Gain (Loss) Value
Municipal bonds $ 4463t $ 17¢ $ (9) $ 44,720 % 68,517 $ 56€ $ 84 $ 68,99¢
Corporate bonds 31,82¢ 104 (174 31,75¢ 17,18 14E — 17,327
Total $ 76,46, % 28C $ (265 ¢ 76,47¢ % 85,69¢ $ 711 % (84 $  86,32¢

We classify the investments listed in the abmiaet as available-fagale securities. Such investments consist primaxfilgorporate ar
municipal bonds, including prefunded municipal bonds. These investments atedst fair value as required by the applicableoanting
guidance. Unrealized gains and losses on suchisesuware reflected, net of tax, as other comprsivenincome (loss) in the Consolids
Statements of Comprehensive Income.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

4. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investmentécontinued)

Our municipal and corporate bonds are includedhar&erm investments, net on our Consolidated Balai@e$. Realized gains and los
on investments are included in earnings and argatktusing the specific identification method fatekmining the cost of securities sold. A
December 31, 2013, contractual maturities of thesels are as follows:

Maturities
Municipal bonds 1 month -9 year:
Corporate bonds 6 months 4 year:

The following table summarizes the short-term itwesnt activity:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments $ 2,79 $ 16,48¢ $ 15,65¢
Proceeds from maturities and calls of short-termestiments $ 4152t $ 28,708 $ 27,67(
Gross realized gains on sale of short-term investsne $ 1 3 19¢ $ 14z

In addition, during 2011, we exercised previouslgimged warrants to purchase common stock in a folicensee and subsequently sold
stock for $1,822 .

5. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is determined based on the excharige that would be received to sell an assetai o transfer a liability in the principal
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipat the measurement date. Fair value
marketbased measurement based on assumptions that "rparkietpants” would use to price the asset oiilligbAccordingly, the framewor
considers markets or observable inputs as the rpeeffesource of value followed by assumptions bamedypothetical transactions, in
absence of market inputs. The fair value shoulddleulated based on assumptions that market paatits would use in pricing the asse
liability, not on assumptions specific to the entitn addition, the fair value of assets and lidiles should include consideration of non
performance risk including the Company’s own creidi.

Additionally, the accounting guidance establishethieelevel hierarchy that ranks the quality and religpilof information used i
developing fair value estimates. The hierarchy gitee highest priority to quoted prices in activarkets and the lowest priority
unobservable data. In cases where two or morededfeinputs are used to determine fair value, arfial instrument's level is determi
based on the lowest level input that is considesigdificant to the fair value measurement in itsirety. The three levels of the fair va
hierarchy are summarized as follows:

Level 1- quoted prices in active markets for titl assets or liabilities;

Level 2- quoted prices in active markets for similar assets liabilities and inputs that are observabletlfier asset ¢
liability; or

Level 3- unobservable inputs, such as discourast ow models or valuations
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

5. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

The following assets are required to be measuréaratalue on a recurring basis and the clasdificawithin the hierarchy was as follows:

Fair Value at December 31, 2013 Fair Value at December 31, 2012
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Municipal bonds $ 4472. % — $ 4472 $ — $ 68,99 $ — $ 68,99 $ =
Corporate bonds 31,75¢ — 31,75¢ — 17,321 — 17,327 —
Total $ 7647¢ $ — $ 7647¢ $ — $ 86,32¢ $ — $ 86,32¢ $ =

Certain financial instruments are carried at costte Consolidated Balance Sheets, which approrsnf@ir value due to their shdgrm
highly liquid nature. The carrying amounts of casid cash equivalents, money market accounts, atcoeceivable and accounts pay:
approximate fair value because of the short-tertaraaf such instruments.

We have classified our investments in municipal aathorate bonds within Level 2 as their valuatiequires quoted prices for simi
instruments in active markets, quoted prices fenigtal or similar instruments in markets that ao¢ active and/or modddased valuatic
techniques for which all significant inputs are etvable in the market or can be corroborated byfable market data. The municipal
corporate bonds are valued based on mddeén valuations. A third party service providesists the Company with compiling market pr
from a variety of industry standard data sourcesyusty master files from large financial instituis and other thirgarty sources that are u:
to value our municipal and corporate bond investsien

The Company's long lived property and equipimferature film and television production assetsraquired to be measured at fair value
non+ecurring basis if it is determined that indicatofsmpairment exist. These assets are recordddiratalue only when an impairment
recognized. During the year ended December 31, 2€H8 Company recorded impairment charges of $11g6 feature film production ass
based on fair value measurements of $2,363 .

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , the Coynmrorded impairment charges of $1,220feature film production assets based or
value measurements of $1,657 . During the yearcelB@dEember 31, 2011 , the Company recorded impairetearges of $23,41dn featun
film production assets based on fair value measenesnof $21,186 . See NoteFReature Film Production Assetdor further discussion. Tl
Company classifies these fair values as Level Biwithe fair value hierarchy due to significant beervable inputs. The Company utiliz¢
discounted cash flows model to determine the failue of these impaired films where indicators ofp@inment exist. The significe
unobservable inputs to this model are the Comsaaypected cash flows for the film, including pobsgel home video sales, pay and free
sales and international sales, and a discounofdt8%that we estimate market participants would seekéaring the risk associated with s
assets. The Company utilizes an independent thirty paluation specialist who assists us in gatitgtive necessary inputs used in our model.

The fair value of the Company's lotgrm debt, consisting of a promissory note pay&blBBS Asset Finance, Inc., is estimated based
quoted interest rates for similar types and amoahtsorrowing agreements. At December 31, 2013fdbe amount of the note approximi
fair value.
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6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

As of December 31,

2013 2012

Land, buildings and improvements $ 106,74¢ $ 97,55
Equipment 107,30 93,31¢
Corporate aircraft 51,755 20,85¢
Vehicles 244 1,47¢
266,05! 213,19¢

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (132,579 (1112,03)
Total $ 133,48( $ 102,16:

Included in Corporate aircraft for the yeaded December 31, 2013 is $30,89&osts related to the acquisition and refurbistinod &
2007 Bombardier Global 5000 aircraft. The aircredis refurbished and placed into service in Febr@a@tyl. Depreciation expense for prop
and equipment totaled $22,906 , $19,151 and $14,&#Che years ended December 31, 2013, 20126ahtl , respectively.

7. Feature Film Production Assets, Net

Feature film production assets consisted of theviehg:

As of December 31,

2013 2012
Feature film productions:
In release $ 9,41 % 13,23
Completed but not released 3,13( 7,84¢
In production 2,68¢ 1,97
In development 78¢ 627
Total $ 16,01¢ $ 23,69:

Approximately 48% of “In release” film productiossets are estimated to be amortized over the r@emidhths and approximately 7886
“In release” film production assets are estimatebd amortized over the next three years. We aatieiamortizing 80%f our "In release" filr
production assets within four years as we recavemues associated with international distributibaur licensed film.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , we rededsee feature films via theatrical distributioNo One Lives The CallandDead Mai
Down and one made-for television filnGhristmas BountyThese four films comprise $2,446 of our “In reléagmature film assets, as
December 31, 2013 . We also released two featims fil2 Rounds 2: Reloadethd The Marine 3: Homefrondirect to DVD during the ye
ended December 31, 2013 , which comprise $2,808upf'In release" feature film assets as of DecerBthe2013 . Thirdparty distributor
control the distribution and marketing of thesenfil and as a result, we recognize revenue on lzaset after the thirgarty distributor recou
distribution fees and expenses and results aretezpto us. Results are typically reported to ugdriods subsequent to the initial release c
film.

F-16




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

7. Feature Film Production Assets, Net (continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , we retktsgo feature films under our self-distribution aeg Bending the Ruleand Barricade
which comprise $128 of our “In release” featurenfihssets December 31, 2013 . We also re-issuetkange film,No Holds Barredlirect-to-
DVD under our self-distribution model during the yeaded December 31, 2012Jnder this distribution model, we control thetdimution anc
marketing of these films. As a result, we reconereies and expenses on a gross basis in our atatealifinancial statements. We also re
distribution expenses, including advertising ankleotexploitation costs, in our financial statemeadsincurred. During 2012the Compan
entered into an agreement to co-distribute thaifedtlm, The Day, domestically. This film was released during Aug2@12 and the Compa
recognizes revenue generated by this film in a reasimilar to how it recognizes revenue for its 20&leased films; on a net basis, ¢
distribution fees and expenses have been recoupkdxaenses and results have been reported to us.

Unamortized feature film production assetsevraluated for impairment each reporting period. Mtgew and revise estimates of ultirr
revenue and participation costs at each reporteripg to reflect the most current information azble. If estimates for a films’ ultimate
revenue are revised and indicate a significantinkeéh a film’s profitability or if events or circumstances charligat indicate we should ass
whether the fair value of a film is less than itemortized film costs, we calculate the films' mstied fair value using a discounted cash f
model. If fair value is less than unamortized ctigt, film is written down to fair value.

We recorded impairment charges of $11,66122R1and $23,414 related to our feature films dutheyyears ended December 31, 2013
2012 and 2011 , respectively. These impairmentgasarepresent the excess of the recorded netmgwglue over the estimated fair value.

We currently have two theatrical films designatsd@ompleted but not released¥e have also capitalized certain script developreat:
for various other film projects designated as “Bvelopment”.Capitalized script development costs are evaluateshch reporting period !
impairment and to determine if a project is deereelde abandoned. During the year ended Decemb&@033B, we did not record any expel
related to previously capitalized development costated to abandoned projects. Approximately $8.,84d $728f previously capitalize
development costs were expensed for abandonecctyr@je2012 and 2011 , respectively.

8. Television Production Assets, Net

Television production assets consist primarily pisedic television series we have produced foritistion, either on our upcoming WV
Network or through other distribution platforms. Aumts capitalized include development costs, prdolicosts, po-production costs al
related production or post-production overhead. Wdee $10,772 and $6,331 capitalized as of Deceithe2013 and 2012 respectively
related to this type of programming. Costs to poedaur live event programming are expensed wherveat is first broadcast. For the y
ended December 31, 2013 , we amortized $7,012ecklkat the airings of the new television seriestal Divas. We did not amortize ai
expenses during the year ended December 31, 2Qkmortized television production assets areuatatl for impairment each report
period. If conditions indicate a potential impaimeand the estimated future cash flows are ndicseifit to recover the unamortized asset
asset is written down to fair value. In additioihwie determine that a program will not likely aive will write-off the remaining unamortiz
asset. During the during the years ended Decenihe?@®.3 and 2012we did not record any impairments related to television productio
assets.
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9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consistbad @fllowing:

As of December 31,

2013 2012

Trade related $ 8,56t $ 7,36¢
Payroll and related benefits 11,291 16,09¢
Talent related 6,30 9,80¢
Accrued event and television production 4,42¢ 5,127
Accrued home entertainment expenses 1,341 1,98¢
Accrued legal and professional 1,90: 1,24:%
Accrued purchases of property and equipment arer asets 1,70C 1,41¢
Accrued film liability 2,65¢ 572
Accrued other 9,69t 5,34t

Total $ 47,88. $ 48,95

Accrued other includes accruals for our publishamgl licensing business activities and other miapoelbus accruals, none of which categs
individually exceeds 5% of current liabilities.

10. Debt

On August 7, 2013, the Company entered into a $8lgomissory note (the “NoteWith RBS Asset Finance, Inc., for the purchase
2007 Bombardier Global 5000 aircraft and refurbishts. The Note bears interest at a rate of 2.p&8oannum, is payable in mont
installments of $406 inclusive of interest, beginning in September2@hd has a final maturity of August 7, 2020. ThateNis secured by
first priority perfected security interest in thewly purchased aircraft. There was $29,88®orrowings outstanding related to the Note ¢
December 31, 2013 . Under the terms of the No&e Gbmpany has the ability to borrow up to an addél $535for refurbishments to ti
corporate aircraft.

In September 2011, the Company entered into a 8208gnior unsecured revolving credit facility with yndicated group of banks, w
JPMorgan Chase acting as administrative agentphil 2013, the Company amended and restated tlwviag credit facility. Under the terr
of the amended credit facility, (i) the maturitytelavas extended to September 9, 2016, (ii) changge made to the applicable margin
borrowings under the facility, and (iii) restriati® on certain financial covenants were amendedrdwige for greater financial flexibilit
Applicable interest rates for the borrowings untiher revolving credit facility are based on the Camygs current consolidated leverage r.
As of December 31, 2013 , the LIBOR-based rate phasgin was 2.00% . As of December 31, 2@l 2012, there were no amot
outstanding under the credit facility. The Compankequired to pay a commitment fee calculatedrate per annum of 0.37566 the averac
daily unused portion of the credit facility. At Derober 31, 2013 the Company had available debt capacity undetdhmas of the revolvir
credit facility of approximately $83,000 .

Under the terms of the revolving credit facilithetCompany is subject to certain financial covemamtd restrictions, including limitatic
with respect to our indebtedness, liens, mergetdsagquisitions, dispositions of assets, investmaratgital expenditures, and transactions
affiliates. In addition, the revolving credit faityl restricts our ability to pay dividends if a deft or event of default has occurred an
continuing thereunder, or if owonsolidated leverage ratio (as calculated underrdvolving credit facility) exceeds 2.8:1.0 orati
consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio (as cafedlunder the revolving credit facility) does eateed 1.25:1.0. As of December 31, 2013
the Company is in compliance with the provisionshid credit facility.

F-18




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

10. Debt (continued)

As of December 31, 2013the scheduled principal repayments under our Mbtgation for the subsequent five years and #raaining
term of the note thereafter are as follows:

December 31, 2015 4,34k

December 31, 2017 4,53¢

Thereafter 7,42¢

The table above assumes that the Note will notrepgid prior to its maturity on August 7, 2020.
11. Income Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ahH, 2@e were taxed on our income from continuing op@na at an effective tax rate
39.9% , 26.4% and 32.7% , respectively. Our incdaxeprovision for the years ended December 31, 202812 and 2011 was $1,839
$11,252 and $12,049 , respectively, and includddrt, state and foreign taxes.

The components of our tax provision are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Current:

State and local 162 66 2,18(

Deferred:

State and local (680) 34 (737)

Total $ 1,83¢ % 11,25 $ 12,04¢

Components of income before income taxes are ksl

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
u.s. $ 4011 $ 42,397 $ 36,76«

Income before income taxes $ 4,600 $ 42,68: $ 36,88:







WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

11. Income Taxes (continued)

The following sets forth the difference betweba provision for income taxes computed at the fe8eral statutory income tax rate 35%
and that reported for financial statement purposes:

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Statutory U.S. federal tax at 35% $ 1,611 $ 14,93¢ $ 12,90¢

Foreign rate differential (22) (32 562

Qualified production activity deduction (94) (854) (1,450

Meals and entertainment 257 19¢ 11z

Property and equipment depreciation 63t — —

Provision for income taxes $ 1,83¢ $ 11,25 $ 12,04¢

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tasets and deferred tax liabilities consisted o
following:

As of December 31,
2013 2012

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory 4,76¢ 4,64(

Stock options/stock compensation 1,96¢ 1,23t

Investments 3 —

Accrued liabilities and reserves 51¢ 411

Deferred tax assets, gross 19,19¢ 20,69¢

Deferred tax assets, net 17,68« 19,08:

Property and equipment depreciation (5,179 (7,82%)

Investments (©)) (230)

Total deferred tax assets, net $ 9,55¢ $ 8,13¢
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

The temporary differences described above repredifietences between the tax basis of assets bilifias and amounts reported in
consolidated financial statements that will resmltaxable or deductible amounts in future yeargmvthe reported amounts of the asse
liabilities are recovered or settled. The Compaageived tax deductions from the exercise of stopgkons, restricted stock units ¢
performance stock units of $3,939 , $2,747 and@848 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , $12,237 and4$34 respectively, of the deferred tax assets, netcategorized as current assets ir
consolidated balance sheets. As of December 3B 262,681 was included in non-current income iailities, and as of December 31, 2012
$6,269 was included in other assets in our cons@iibalance sheets.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , we had valuationwvances of $1,512 and $1,6f&pectively, to reduce our deferred tax assets
amount more likely than not to be recovered. Thiluation allowance relates to losses incurred @salt of our Australian film entities, a
are not expected to be realized due to the suspensiilm activity in Australia.

We are subject to periodic audits of our vasitax returns by government agencies which caddlt in possible tax liabilities. Although
outcome of these matters cannot currently be détednwe believe the outcome of these audits waitlhave a material effect on our finan
statements.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided folapproximately $4,43®f unremitted earnings of our international sulssigis. Thes
earnings are expected to be indefinitely reinvesteztseas. It is not practical to compute the exttioh deferred tax liability on these earni
Any additional U.S. taxes payable on the remairfioigign earnings, if remitted, would be substahtiaffset by credits for foreign tax
already paid.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

For the year ended December 31, 2013 , we recadjifi2B80of previously unrecognized tax benefits. This prifgarelates to the statute
limitations expiring in certain state and localigdlictions. Included in the amount recognized wa2 @& potential interest and penalties rel:
to uncertain tax positions. For the year ended Béez 31, 2012, we recognized $4,382reviously unrecognized tax benefits relatinghte
settlement of various audits, including the StateConnecticut, the IRS, and other state and loaakdlictions. Included in the amoi
recognized was $1,52f potential interest and penalties related to tagetax positions. The recognition of these antswontributed to ol
effective tax rate of 39.9% for the year ended Dawmer 31, 2013 as compared to 26.4% for the yeazceBetcember 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2013 , we had $1,##6unrecognized tax benefits, which if recognizeduld affect our effective tax rate. Of this amq
$174 is classified in Prepaid expense and othaentiassets and the remaining $1,612 is classifiedon-current income tax liabilities. |
December 31, 2012 , we had $2,128 of unrecogneebtenefits. This entire amount was classified amiurrent income tax liabilities.
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

Unrecognized tax benefit activity is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Beginning Balance- January 1 $ 2,12¢ 3 10,73¢  $ 10,08
Increase to unrecognized tax benefits recordegdsitions taken during the current yeal 10¢€ 307 1,22¢
(Decrease) Increase to unrecognized tax beneitsded for positions taken during a prior

period 3 (2,597 47C
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits relatingtibesnents with taxing authorities (29) (5,799 (242)
Decrease to unrecognized tax benefits resulting fadapse of the applicable statute of

limitations (419 (52¢) (8049)
Ending Balance- December 31 $ 1,78¢  $ 2128 $ 10,73:

We recognize potential accrued interest and pesalélated to uncertain tax positions in incomeetgpense. We have $468accrued intere
and $171 of accrued penalties related to uncet@aipositions as of December 31, 2013 . Of theseuais, $33s classified in Prepaid expel
and other current assets and the remaining $591claasified in Non-current income tax liabilitiest December 31, 2012, we had $562
accrued interest and $214 of accrued penaltietetkta uncertain tax positions. Of this amount, §28 classified in Prepaid expense and «
current assets and the remaining $696 was clagsifislon-current income tax liabilities.

Based upon the expiration of statutes of limitatiand possible settlements in several jurisdictiagsbelieve it is reasonably possible tha
total amount of previously unrecognized tax begsefiay decrease by approximately $890 within 12 hwafter December 31, 2013 .

We file income tax returns in the United States aadous state, local, and foreign jurisdictionsiring 2013, the Company settled audits
various state, local, and foreign jurisdictions. \Ale subject to examination by the IRS, and witlv &xceptions, other state and Ic
jurisdictions, for years ending on or after Decentie 2010

12. Film and Television Production Incentives

The Company has access to various governmentafgmsgthat are designed to promote film and telemigiroduction within the Unite
States and certain international jurisdictionselmoses earned with respect to expenditures onifgjing film, television and other producti
activities, including qualifying capital projectse included as an offset to the related asset anaffset to production expenses when we
reasonable assurance regarding the realizable anoduhe incentives. Film and television productimeentives received consisted of
following:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Feature film production incentives $ 864 % 1,851 $ 6,067
Television production incentives 10,34¢ 7,97¢ 6,56
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13. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, including various naneelable operating leases for facilities andssaffices, service contracts with ceri
vendors and various talent.

Future minimum payments as of December 31, 2018muth@é agreements described above were as follows:

Operating Talent and Service
Lease Other Agreement
Commitments Commitments Commitments Total
2014 $ 3,86¢ $ 14,97C $ 7,637 $ 26,47
2015 2,732 9,68¢ — 12,42(
2016 2,41z 8,251 — 10,66¢
2017 1,60t 7,131 — 8,73¢
2018 1,357 1,51 — 2,87(
Thereafter 3,251 3,74¢ — 7,00¢
Total $ 15,23( $ 4530: $ 7,631 $ 68,16¢

Rent expense under operating lease commitmentedo#®,405 , $4,608 and $2,847 for the years emmember 31, 2013 , 20Ehc
2011 , respectively.

Legal Proceeding:

We are involved in several suits and claims thatamsider to be in the ordinary course of our bessn By its nature, the outcome of litiga
is not known but the Company does not currentlyeekfis pending litigation to have a material adeegffect on our financial condition, res
of operations or liquidity. We may from time to #nbecome a party to other legal proceedings.

14. Related Party Transactions

Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Direst and Chief Executive Officer, controls a subs#majority of the voting pow:
of the issued and outstanding shares of our constmk. Through the beneficial ownership of a sutishmajority of our Class B comm
stock, Mr. McMahon can effectively exercise contveer our affairs.

From February 2008 until April 2011, the Board afdators authorized quarterly cash dividends oB6Ger share on all Class A comn
shares. The quarterly dividend on all Class A aleb€B shares held by members of the McMahon faamilty their respective trusts remai
at $0.24per share for a period of three years due to aevaeceived from the McMahon family. This waivepérd after the declaration of 1
March 2011 dividend.

Linda McMahon, former Chief Executive Officer ofettCompany, was a candidate for the United Stateat&erepresenting the State
Connecticut, in 2010 and 2012. Mrs. McMal®election teams engaged the Company to produtarcéglevision advertisements during tr
campaigns. The Company performed these serviceslagied the campaigns the fair market value ferptovided television producti
services, which were approximately $4 and $3 fenytbars ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 , resgigcti

15. Stockholders’ Equity
Class B Convertible Common Stock

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible i@lass A common stock, on a one for one basis,\atiare at the option of the holder. 1
two classes are entitled to equal per share didislamd distributions and vote together as a clétsseach share of Class B entitled to ten v
and each share of Class A entitled to one voteepbiehen separate class voting is required
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15. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

by applicable law. If, at any time, any shares &s€ B common stock are beneficially owned by aegs@n other than Vincent McMah
Linda McMahon, any descendant of either of theny, emtity which is wholly owned and is controlled agy combination of such person:
any trust, all the beneficiaries of which are angnbination of such persons, each of those shateawtomatically convert into shares of Cl
A common stock. During the years ended Decembe2@13 , 2012 and 2011Class B shares were sold, resulting in their eogion to Clas
A shares. Through his beneficial ownership of assadtial majority of our Class B common stock, @ontrolling stockholder, Vince
McMabhon, can effectively exercise control over affairs, and his interests could conflict with tin@ders of our Class A common stock.

Dividends
In April 2011, the Board of Directors adjusted empany’s quarterly dividend to $0.12 per sharalbflass A and Class B shares.

From February 2008 through the first quarter of 2ahe Board of Directors authorized quarterly cdisidends of $0.3@er share on all Cla
A common shares. The quarterly dividend on all €kasand Class B shares held by members of the Mokl&mily and their respective tru
remained at $0.2fer share for a period of three years due to aevaieceived from the McMahon family. This waivemperd after th
declaration of the March 2011 dividend.

We paid quarterly dividends of $0.12 per shareglimg $35,979 and $35,8150n all Class A and Class B shares for the yeadgc
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. In da gnded December 31, 2011 , we paid one quadmblend of $0.36er share and thr
quarterly dividends of $0.12 per share, totaling,8%7 , on all Class A common shares, and we paédquarterly dividend of $0.2der shar
and three quarterly dividends of $0.12 per shatalihg $27,852 , on all Class B common shares.

16. Stock-based Compensation

The 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "2007 Plarrvigles for equitybased incentive awards as determined by the coraper
committee of the Board of Directors as incentived eewards to encourage officers and employeesticypate in our londgerm success.
2004, we began issuing RSUs, which typically hatkraee year service requirement and vest in equadi@ installments. In 2007, we be:
issuing PSUs in addition to RSUs, which are suligcertain performance conditions and generalst vatably over three and one-half years.

As of December 31, 2013, there were approximaedymillion shares available for future grants under the 208m. Bt is our policy to isst
new shares to satisfy option exercises and théngest RSUs and PSUs.

Stock Options

We have not granted any stock options since Jufid.ZBince December 31, 201there are no stock options outstanding and niomptver:
exercised during the years ended December 31, 28082, and 2011.

Restricted Stock Uni

The Company grants RSUs to officers and eygals under our 2007 Plan. Stdwksed compensation costs associated with our R&
determined using the fair market value of the Camgfsacommon stock on the date of the grant. Thests@are recognized over the requ
service period using the graded vesting method, afie¢stimated forfeitures. We estimate forfeiturbased on historical trends, wil
recognizing compensation expense and adjust thmatst of forfeitures when they are expected toedifRSUs typically have a three y
service requirement and vest in equal annual instaits. Unvested RSUs accrue dividend equivaldrttseasame rate as are paid on our sl
of Class A common stock. The dividend equivalengéssaibject to the same vesting schedule as thelyimdeRSUSs.
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16. Stock-based Compensation (continued)

The following tables summarize the activity of RSdisthe year ended December 31, 2013 :

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2013 146,17 $ 9.97
Granted 51,977 $ 9.91
Vested (64,35) $ 10.2(
Forfeited (32,550 $ 9.04
Dividend Equivalents 578¢ $ 9.47
Unvested at December 31, 2013 107,03 g 9.87

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Stock-based compensation expense $ 63z $ 1,32 $ 37C
Tax benefits realized 621 494 141
Weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSUstgrhn 51t 1,36¢ 632
Fair value of RSUs vested 65€ 647 1,70(

As of December 31, 2013 , total unrecognized stmded compensation expense related to unvested RE0$ estimated forfeitures, v
approximately $424 , before income taxes, andieeted to be recognized over a weighted-averagedpef approximately 1.3 years.

Performance Stock Uni

Stockbased compensation costs associated with our PUsitially determined using the fair market valofethe Company's common st
on the date the awards are approved by our Compi@mszommittee (service inception date) and aretgc under our 2007 Plan. The ves
of these PSUs are subject to certain performancgittons and a service requirement of three and lwel€ years. Until such time t
performance conditions are met, stock compensatists associated with these PSUs amaeasured each reporting period based upon tt
market value of the Company's common stock ancpthbability of attainment on the reporting dateeTiitimate number of PSUs that
issued to an employee is the result of the actedbpmance of the Company at the end of the pedoaa period compared to the perform:
conditions. Stock compensation costs for our PStdsrecognized over the requisite service periodgusihe graded vesting method, ne
estimated forfeitures. Unvested PSUs accrue diddsgquivalents once the performance conditions aeanthe same rate as are paid or
shares of Class A common stock. The dividend edgiiNg are subject to the same vesting scheduleeasiderlying PSUs.
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16. Stock-based Compensation (continued)

The following tables summarize the activity of PSbisthe year ended December 31, 2013 :

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2013 685,70 $ 8.37
Granted 932,78t $ 15.45
Vested (314,009 $ 9.3t
Forfeited (74,319 $ 11.81
Dividend Equivalents 29,46t $ 10.27
Unvested at December 31, 2013 1,259,62' ¢ 13.4¢

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Stock-based compensation expense $ 4,48¢ % 2,440 % 2,37¢
Tax benefits realized 3,31¢ 2,25; 904
Weighted-average grant-date fair value of PSUstgtan 14,43( 4,91z 6,062
Fair value of PSUs vested 2,937 4,37¢ 5,87¢

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we grad@2j700PSUs which were subject to performance conditi@ging the thre
months ended March 31, 2013, the certain performammnditions related to these PSUs were met whishlted in us granting27,89(
additional PSU's in 2013 relating to the initial20PSU grant.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, \watgd 804,896 PSUs which are subject to certaiioqpeance conditions.

As of December 31, 2013, total unrecognized stmaed compensation expense related to unvested R8I estimated forfeitures, v
approximately $ 5,733, before income taxes, amkpected to be recognized over a weighted-avqraged of approximately 1.6 years.

Employee Stock Purchase PI

We provide a stock purchase plan for our employédeaser the plan, all regular full-time employeesynsantribute up to 10%f their bas
compensation (subject to certain income limits)h® semi-annual purchase of shares of our comnumk.sThe purchase price is 858bthe
fair market value at certain platefined dates. As this plan is defined as compengat charge is recorded to Selling, general
administrative expense for the difference betwdenfair market value and the discounted price. mu2013, 2012 and 2011, employ
purchased 76,219 , 76,676 and 67,537 shares aooumon stock which resulted in an expense of $485,, $110 , respectively.

17. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan cigeisubstantially all employees. Under this plaartipipants are allowed to me
contributions based on a percentage of their satayject to a statutorily prescribed annual lidite make matching contributions of 508f
each participant’s contributions, up to @¥eeligible compensation. We may also make additialiscretionary contributions to the 401(k) p
Our expense for matching contributions to the 4pp{&n was $1,606 , $1,384 and $1,239 for the yeaded December 31, 2013 , 2Cdri®
2011, respectively. The Company did not make asgretionary contributions for the years ended Dawer 31, 2013, 2012 or 2011 .
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

18. Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company currently dlassits operations into four reportable segmehtse and Televised Entertainme
Consumer Products, Digital Media and WWE Studios.

Beginning in the first quarter of 2013, the Compamgde changes to its operating plan and manageewmnitting to reflect a change in
measurement used by management to evaluate perfoem@ahe Company changed its measure of segmefitt (lwss) to operating incon
(loss) before depreciation and amortization or "DMB. Prior to 2013, the Company measured segmaenfitffoss) using operating incon
The Company revised its financial information arnschbsures for prior periods to reflect the segndistiosures as if the current measur
profit (loss), OIBDA, had been in effect throughaillitperiods presented.

The Company presents OIBDA as the primary measusegment profit (loss). The Company believes tles@ntation OIBDA is releva
and useful for investors because it allows investor view our segment performance in the same nmaamdhe primary method used
management to evaluate performance and make dexialmut allocating resources. The Company defiB®OA as operating income befc
depreciation and amortization, excluding featulra imortization and film impairments.

We do not allocate certain costs included in OIB@Aour reportable segments. These costs are phlyntaniporate overhead expenses
costs which benefit the Company as a whole andherefore not allocated to our reportable segmé&itating in the second quarter of 2(
we began allocating certain staff related expensgscifically stock compensation costs, managerime@ntive compensation and med
benefits in our management reporting and, as swehincluded these costs in the calculation of OIBfA our reportable segments. T
change did not have a material impact on our raptetsegments’ OIBDA. Revenues from transactiohsdmn our operating segments are
material.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

18. Segment Information (continued)

The following tables present summarized finangiébimation for each of the Company's reportablersags:

2013 2012 2011

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 382,25 $ 353,84¢ % 339,97¢

Digital Media 38,52¢ 34,53 28,13

Total net revenues $ 507,97 $ 484,01 $ 483,92:

Depreciation and amortization:

Consumer Products 1,56: 874 46C

WWE Studios 9 9

©

Total depreciation and amortization $ 24,46¢ $ 20,02: $ 14,98(

||
©
o
bs

Consumer Products 40,79¢ 48,64: 51,03

WWE Studios (12,749 (5,457 (29,375

Total OIBDA $ 30,36( $ 63,21¢ $ 51,99¢

Reconciliation of Total Operating Income to TotdBDA

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Depreciation and amortization 24,46¢ 20,02« 14,98(
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

18. Segment Information (continued)

Assets by Segmel

As of December 31,
2013 2012

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 186,01! $ 150,01

Digital Media 9,18i 8,85«

Unallocated Corporate and other 151,99¢ 181,87¢

Included in Live and Televised Entertainment foe $year ended December 31, 2013 is $30,8080sts related to the acquisition
refurbishment of a 2007 Bombardier Global 5000rafic The aircraft was refurbished and placed s#ovice in February 2014. Unallocs
assets represent certain assets not allocated teportable segments. These assets are primarpiprate related and benefit the Company
whole.

Capital Spending by Segment:

Year ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Consumer Products 22t 5,18¢ 1,79:

Corporate and other 20,51¢ 23,58 19,26°

Geographic Information

Net revenues by major geographic region are baged the geographic location of where our contedistibuted. The information belc
summarizes net revenues to unaffiliated customegebgraphic area:

Year ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Europe/Middle East/Africa 72,40¢ 70,72( 76,16¢

Latin America 6,62¢ 10,26« 18,57:

Revenues generated from the United Kingdom, ogekrinternational market, totaled $36,003 , $34,80d $33,178or the years end:
December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2QX&spectively. The Company's property and equipmes almost entirely located in the United Stati
December 31, 2013 and 2012 .
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

19. Concentration of Credit Risk

We continually monitor our position with, and theedit quality of, the financial institutions thateacounterparties to our financ
instruments. Our accounts receivable relates gatlgi to a limited number of distributors, includirour television, pay-periew and hom
video distributors and licensees that produce amesuproducts containing our intellectual trademaik& closely monitor the status
receivables with these customers and maintain alhoes for anticipated losses as deemed appropfateecember 31, 2013 our larges
single customer balance was approximately 13% opfjoass accounts receivable balance.

20. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th  Quarter
2013 1B (2) 1) @) (1)

Net revenues $ 124,00 $ 152,28. $ 113,29: $ 118,39
Cost of revenues $ 74,86¢ $ 96,85 $ 70,94, $ 80,36(
Net income (loss) $ 3,032 % 5182 $ 2,43¢ $ (7,89))
Net income (loss) per common share: basic $ 0.0£ % 0.07 $ 0.0z $ (0.1))
Net income (loss) per common share: diluted $ 0.04 % 0.01 $ 0.05 % (0.120
2012

Net revenues $ 123,06¢ $ 141,64¢ $ 104,190 $ 115,10(
Cost of revenues $ 68,397 $ 85,48: $ 61,40¢ $ 69,16¢
Net income $ 1533 $ 11,94: $ 3521 $ 631
Net income per common share: basic $ 021 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0t $ 0.01
Net income per common share: diluted $ 0.2C $ 0.1 $ 0.0t $ 0.01

(1) Cost of revenues for the first and third geestof 2013 includes impairment charges of $4,686 $6,965, respectively, related
certain of our feature films. Cost of revenuestf@ first and fourth quarters of 2012 includes impant charges of $754 and $475
respectively, related to certain of our featurméll See Note Feature Film Production Assets.

(2) Net income for the second and third quarters o824Xid 2012 includes the benefit$257 , $6,373 , and $1,031 , $4,148spectively
relating to incentives received relating to tel@nsproduction.

(3) Netincome includes $4,057tax benefit in the first quarter of 2012 relategbteviously unrecognized tax bene

21. Subsequent Event

On January 8, 2014, the Company announced theHaafid/WE Network. WWE Network, the firgver 24/7 streaming network, will laur
live in the U.S. on Monday, February 24, 2014 faatyall twelve WWE live pay-per-view events — inding WrestleMania WWE Networl
will also include original programming, reality she, documentaries, classic matches and more tH0 hours of video on demand.
anticipation of launching WWE Network, the Compaamynounced that it will cease operations of its W@IBssics on Demand Subscript
On Demand offering in January 2014. Additionallye taunch of WWE Network, which reimagines theritistion of WWE'’s pay-periew
events, could reduce the monetization of othertassach as pay-peiew and other content distributed on certain digilatforms, the effe
of which the Company is not able to estimate.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Charges to Balance at
Balance at  Expense/
Beginning Against  Deductions/Adjustments  End of
Description of Year Revenues * Year

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 2,14¢ 14,94¢ (15,05%) 2,03¢

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 3,28¢ 14,35¢ (15,49¢) 2,14t

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns

4,271 23,62¢ (24,61

3,28¢

* Includes deductions which are comprised primaoifiyvrite-offs of specific bad debts and returns of magazameshome videos from retaile
or adjustments to the allowance account which t&ffead debt expense.
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WWE SUBSIDIARIES
(All subsidiaries are wholly-owned, directly or irettly, except where indicated)

TSI Realty Company (a Delaware corporation)
Event Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
e WM Labor MGT, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
* Event Services (Nola), LLC (a Louisiana corpora)
WWE Jet Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Studios, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
*  WWE Studios Originals, Inc. (a Delaware corpora)

«  WWE Films Development, Inc. (a Delaware corporal
WWE Studios Production, Inc. (a Delaware corporg

«  WWE TE Productions, Inc. (a Delaware corporal
«  WWE LH Productions, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
* Marine Productions Australia Pty Limited (an Austaorporation
* Barricade Productions Inc. (a British Columbia aygtion
e Marine 3, LLC (a Louisiana limited liability compg}
* Marine: Homefront, Inc. (a Delaware corporat
*  Homefront Productions Inc. (a British Columbia camp,
 Twelve RR, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
* Reload Films, Inc. (a British Columbia compe
e Six Forty Two Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
e One More Time Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporat
» Jersey Family Films Inc. (a British Columbia comy)
»  Original Leprechaun Films, Inc. (a British Columbiampany
* See No Evil 2 Films, Inc. (a British Columbia compj
e Mind’s Eye Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
* Incarnate Investments, Inc. (a Delaware corpor}
*  TFG Productions, LLC (a Louisiana limited liabilitcpmpany
*  Fourth Marine Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporat
e Triangle Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
WWE Properties International, Inc. (a Delaware ooagion)
e XFL, LLC (50 percent ownec
WWE Japan LLC (a Japanese limited liability company
WWE Australia Pty Limited (an Australia limited baity company)
World Wrestling Entertainment (International) Liext (a UK corporation)

World Wrestling Entertainment Canada, Inc. (a Céradorporation

Exhibit 21.1



WWE Asia Pacific Pte, Ltd. (a Singapore Corporation

WWE Germany GmbH (a German Corporation)



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement No. 333-92041, 333-181001 é&81151022 on Form 8-of our report
dated February 24, 2014, relating to the consdaiiidinancial statements and financial statementédwle of World Wrestling Entertainme
Inc. and subsidiaries, and the effectiveness ofléV@dfrestling Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiariarnal control over financial reportir
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Wa#/restling Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiarsthe year ended December 31, 2013.

/sl Deloitte & Touche, LLP
Stamford, CT
February 24, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

Certification required by Securities and Exchangs &f 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to @e802 of Sarbanedxley Act o
2002:

[, Vincent K. McMahon certify that:

1.

2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F World Wrestling Entertainment, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slakisire controls and procedures and presentedsimehort our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regidtsainternal control over financial reporting that¢curred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hateniadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registran
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatidntefal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxoimmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the equival
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes&e the design or operation of internal controkfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thegistrant's ability to record, process, summasdre report financi
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Dated: February 24, 2014 By: /s/ VINCEK. MCMAHON

Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.

Certification required by Securities and Exchangs &f 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to @e802 of Sarbanedxley Act o
2002:

I, George A. Barrios certify that:

1.

2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F World Wrestling Entertainment, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slakisire controls and procedures and presentedsimehort our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regidtsainternal control over financial reporting that¢curred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hateniadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registran
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatidntefal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxoimmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the equival
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes&e the design or operation of internal controkfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thegistrant's ability to record, process, summasdre report financi
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Dated: February 24, 2014 By: /s/ GEORGBARRIOS

George A. Barrios
Chief Strategy and Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chairman and CEO and CFO Purst@ant

18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe@d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fk\Morld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Compényor the year ended December
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Repor¥jncent K. McMahon as Chairman of the Ba
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and @eoA. Barrios as Chief Strategy and Financial @ffiof the Company, each here
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,dpted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb&rdsey Act of 2002, that, to the best of his
her knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA 1934 as amended; ¢

(2) The information contained in the report faiplsesents, in all material aspects, the finan@alition and results of operations of the

Company.
Dated: February 24, 2014 By: /s/ VINCEK. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: February 24, 2014 By: /sl GEORGBARRIOS

George A. Barrios
Chief Strategy and Financial Officer



